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Chairman’s Statement
FIRHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Modern Education
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the first
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011 (the “Year 2011”).

The Year 2011 is a monumental year for the Group as one of the
Group’s long-term aspirations has been achieved and we were
resoundingly listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 July 2011. As the first listed
company in the tutoring services industry in Hong Kong, the Group
recorded net proceeds of approximately HK$130 million from the
public offering with an offer price of HK$1.30 per share.

As one of the leading education services providers in Hong Kong, the
Group offers various education programmes and services, including
secondary tutoring services, secondary day school education,
English language training and test preparation courses and primary
tutoring services. As of 30 June 2011, the Group had 182 registered
classrooms in Hong Kong. We successfully entered the Chinese
education market in 2010 and are currently providing technical
consultation, management and software licensing services to Beijing
Yasi School, which has a nation-wide school network of over 15 cities
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Aiming at improving our students’ results in public examinations, the
Group is dedicated to delivering quality study materials and advanced
diagnostic analysis. Thanks also to our experienced tutors, the Group
is one of the leading brands in Hong Kong'’s private education services
sector. This is shown by the Group’s recognition as a “Trusted Brand”
in 2008, 2009 and 2010 by the Readers’ Digest and being voted as
“The best for Home 10-11" in a survey organized by the Take Me
Home Community Post in 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement
FIEHRS

The Year 2011 is also a special year for Hong Kong’s education
system. Under the new “334 system”, there are six academic years in
secondary school and the two public examinations have merged into
one, the HKDSE. In this transitional period, we recorded a decrease
in revenue compared with the previous year due to the abolishment of
one of the two public examinations-the HKCEE. However, we believe
this would just have a one-off effect on the Group. The number of
secondary students under the “334 system” will actually be more than
that under the old system. Since the examination will be of upmost
importance and will result in stiff competition among the students, the
demand for tutoring services, both secondary and primary, is believed
to be on the rise.

Facing challenges and opportunities under the “334 system”, the
Group will continue to strengthen and expand existing services,
especially English language training and test preparation courses,
and at the same time we will diversify our income sources in terms
of extending our step to adjacent or related educational services in
the local market and further exploring other growth boosters in the
PRC. Leveraging our professional and well-recognised reputation in
Hong Kong, we have expanded into the overseas studies consultation
market through a partnership with an overseas studies consultation
company in Hong Kong and have commenced the provision of
overseas studies consultation and related services since May 2011.
Furthermore, to assist our students in coping with their further
overseas studies, we are going to offer our IFY courses and bridging
programs in both Hong Kong and the PRC in the very near future. As
one of the industry’s market leaders, we are confident of achieving
maximum profits through our competitive advantages.

Realizing the growing opportunities in the PRC, we have already
commenced our PRC operation with Beijing Yasi School in Beijing
since 2010. To take advantage of our competitive edge of experience
in providing English proficiency training in Hong Kong, the Group has
planned to use approximately HK$15 million to set up five English
learning centers for kids so as to cater to local needs in the PRC. The
Group will also focus on preparation courses for tests to be answered
in English such as A Level, AP, IFY and NCC courses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FIRHES

Owing to the “one child policy” and rising consumption powers of
parents, qualified English tutoring and preparation for international
English examinations are in strong demand in the PRC. The Group
plans to further develop in the PRC through different means, such as
increasing the number of centers in the PRC, exploring collaboration
opportunities with strong markets players in the kindergarten and
preschool services, and collaborating with established schools and
institutes in providing test preparation services for standardized
English examinations such as International English Language Testing
System (“IELTS”), TOEFL, SAT and those for bridging courses. We will
continue to look for opportunities in the PRC market to add value to
our business.

Running a business featured by healthy cash inflow from operating
activities, we are convinced that a competitive and steady dividend
policy will be one of our commitments to our shareholders in the
future. However, we do not recommend a final dividend for the Year
2011 as the one-off effect of abolishing the HKCEE has adversely
influenced the Group’s results for the Year 2011.

Finally, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our
employees and teachers for their contributions to the Group. | would
also like to express my deepest gratitude to our shareholders and
investors for their support. We will continue to create value and
contribute to the Group to benefit all our stakeholders.

NG Kam Lun, Eric
Chairman
Hong Kong

29 September 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E 1P I3 51 R I 70 il

The Group is one of the leading tutoring services providers in Hong
Kong. We offer a wide range of education programmes and services
consisting of secondary tutoring services, secondary day school
education, English language training and test preparation courses,
primary tutoring services and other programmes and services. We
provide private education services under our “Modern Education”
(BAR#E), “Modern College” (IR EBT), “Modern Bachelor
Education” (I /N2 1) and “New Era Bachelor Education Centre”
(it 2+ # =) brands. In recent years, we were awarded a
number of recognitions in Hong Kong, including “Trusted Brand” ({22
A2 ) in 2008, 2009 and 2010 by the Readers Digest ( #&#& X ¥4 ) and
“The Best for Home 10-11”" Award (BB RERE REAXE10-11)
organised by the Take me Home Community Post (Take me Home e
AERER) in 2010

BUSINESS REVIEW
Secondary Tutoring Services

During the year, our secondary tutoring services continued to be the
major income driver of the Group. Our secondary tutoring services are
offered in the learning centres under our “Modern Education”( 33X
# A& ) brand (“ME Centres”), under which we provide supplementary
education services for secondary school students from Form 1 to
Form 7 (or with the 334 System, Secondary 1 to Secondary 6), with
an emphasis on improving students’ internal school performance and
preparing them for public examinations, namely, HKCEE and HKALE &
HKASLE (or with the 334 System, HKDSE).

We aim to improve our students’ results of HKCEE and HKALE
& HKASLE, and with the 334 System, HKDSE, through quality
instruction by our tutors who are knowledgeable on the intricacies of
these examinations and the teaching of test-taking techniques. We
believe that an important part of our courses is the high quality of our
study materials and the advanced diagnostic analysis that we deliver.

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had 15 ME Centres located in various
districts on Hong Kong Island, in Kowloon and the New Territories,
including Causeway Bay, North Point, Chai Wan, Prince Edward,
Mongkok, Kowloon Bay, Tseung Kwan O, Tai Po, Tsuen Wan, Shatin,
Tuen Mun, Yuen Long and Fanling.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year, we provided secondary tutoring courses to students
in Form 6 to Form 7 and Secondary 1 to Secondary 5 on subjects
under the formal curriculum set forth by the Education Bureau of the
Government of Hong Kong (the “EDB”).

Our secondary tutoring courses can generally be divided into 5 types,
namely (i) regular courses; (i) intensive courses; (i) summer courses;
(iv) T.I.LP.S. (Technique, Insight, Practice and Strategy) courses; and (v)
special courses. The following tables set forth the number of course
enrolments, the number of tutors and the average course fees of each
category of secondary tutoring courses during the year:

R BMABERHEEBESRNRED (1%
BB P E EARIE TR B 0k < B £ R
M —ERE M BHERRE

BT EHBRE—RAID SRR B()FHR
2 (BRI (B HIRAE  (vESRTT (X175
RN BBLRRE)E: RVEMRE - TR
FAFAZHETEFERENRERBAR B
BDABK FIRE

Year ended 30 June

B E6H0HLLFE
2011 2010

Number of course enrolments (in thousands)  BRBHREBAR (A F&)
Regular courses BHRE 346 493
Intensive courses fE BT 47 88
Summer courses EHIRE 32 58
T.I.P.S. courses FER F T Ik 6 19
Special courses BERIRE 73 84
Number of tutors (Note 1) BEAS (A1)
Regular courses B RE 62 52
Intensive courses TERE I 34 46
Summer courses EHIRIE 56 46
T.I.PS. courses FE SR BT I 21 24
Special courses BERIRE 48 29
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) Ry (Eor) (Mit2)
Regular courses B RIE 459 461
Intensive courses 5 A IE 400 430
Summer courses =HRE 382 400
T.I.PS. courses FEA XTI 377 359
Special courses =RIFRE 160 157
Note 1: Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain Kiit1 - EBEIR] BT AEE THERNREIEHP 2

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors B - At FAEBERETHRE BE

for the provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer - Z2HR2 ERFEOELRERRZAER

courses, T.I.P.S. courses and special courses is not equal to the ANEER W TERERR4E A S o

total number of tutors for the year.
Note 2: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. K2 : BN AR AERBRIZRE AKX
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year, with the implementation of the 334 System, HKCEE
candidates had already sat for the last round of HKCEE in the
academic year of 2010, which led to a substantial decrease in the
number of course enrolments.

FR EEZ-NEHNER FEPB8gEEL
R010FEFEEERE —EEEREEE . &
BERTER B AR KIER A o

Secondary Day School Education

Our secondary day schools are operated under our “Modern College”
(IR ZP7) brand. Our secondary day schools were established with
an aim to rebuild our students’ confidence in learning and provide
them with an opportunity to further their secondary school education
in a full-day and formal academic environment. Therefore, we have
minimal academic admission requirements for students who wish to
attend our schools so long as they have passed an assessment of
character to ensure that they are likely to demonstrate good conduct
in class.

During the year, the Group had obtained the relevant licences for
operating secondary day school in one more ME Centre, namely,
Tseung Kwan O ME Centre. As at 30 June 2011, we had 11 schools
located in our Amoy Plaza, Causeway Bay, North Point, Prince
Edward, Kowloon Bay, Shatin, Tsuen Wan, Tseung Kwan O and Tuen
Mun ME Centres.

During the year, we provided instruction of day school education at
Secondary 5, Form 6 and 7 levels in a full-day, standard schooling
format on subjects under the formal curriculum set forth by the EDB.

The following tables illustrate the number of course enrolments
and average course fees for the respective school levels under our
secondary day school education during the year:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Year ended 30 June

#H E6A30H L

2011 2010
Number of course enrolments (in thousands)  BREB|EBAR (U T5F)
Secondary/Form 5 SHh=-/fhH 3.9 5.7
Secondary/Form 6 == /HR 4.0 3.6
Form 7 -+ 3.0 2.2
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 1) FgBE (Eor) (1)
Secondary/Form 5 ek 2,801 2,526
Secondary/Form 6 S =X 2,940 3,056
Form 7 R4 3,515 3,500
Note 1: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. Krag1 0 BURABRAFERREBRSE AKX

Under the 334 System, the years of secondary education decrease
from 7 years to 6 years and the two public examinations, HKCEE at
the Form 5 level and HKALE & HKASLE at the Form 7 level will be
replaced by one public examination, namely HKDSE. The number of
course enrolments of our day school students dropped in the year
under review mainly because fewer students took our Secondary
5 day school programmes under the 334 System than in the last
financial year when students took Form 5 day school programmes.
As such, we had moderately increased our course fee to mitigate the
effect resulting from the decrease in the number of course enrolments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

Our English language training and test preparation courses are
offered under our “Modern Education”( 22 X4 & ) brand. Since 2005,
we have been providing English language training as well as test
preparation courses on international English language standardized
tests and examinations such as IELTS and TOEFL, at our ME Centres.
After obtaining approval from the Labour and Welfare Bureau in 2007,
we began providing the IELTS Preparation Course and Diploma in
Work Place English TOEIC Preparatory Course in Hong Kong, which
are courses reimbursable by the Hong Kong Government under
the Continuing Education Fund (the “CEF”). Furthermore, we are
authorised to hold IELTS tests at our ME Centres.

We have a designated sales team responsible for promoting our
test preparation courses on IELTS and TOEIC, which are courses
reimbursable by the Hong Kong Government under the CEF scheme.
We have separate registration counters at our ME Centres attending
enquiries of students who wish to enroll in our test preparation
courses. Our sales team will explain to prospective students the
course details as well as the requirements for reimbursement set forth
by the Hong Kong Government under the CEF scheme.

During the year, we recorded a total number of 6,000 course
enrolments under our English language training and test preparation

courses, compared to 3,800 course enrolments in last year.

HERKNRESRRE

B RBIE I R ERREUARMN [RRHE]
MR ARIR - B2005F LAK - TP —E R MIAY (3]
REBIHEFPLHBEEREBZEARARER
Il a0 e BIELTS X $E 48 TOEFLIR (it 25 58 55 3| F2 e =,
R -R2007FBBL T REFNBHIER &
PMRABREBERELEECES ([BEEBEES])
TIRERERIEATETBRITEENHBIELTS
EARERBEEE R ETORCES 2.
BEAN - BPIVERER KM BB | HEH L
B RBIELTSE S -

BME—XHEKMO EERBEHERMOME
BIELTS K FE X TOEICE R 18 - % TR IERIBEHF
BECEDTERBNETESE - RMANKEMD
[(RRBEIHEFOREBUNRAIEERE B8
EERERMOEARENELENER - KM
HEK Mg EZEMREBREFIEURBRERE
EEESFERANEELENRE-

FRBARERERI REARENRERA
ANIRE $#96,000% © 1 £ —FEHRBHHE AKX
/43,8004 °

Annual Report 2011 F$§ 1




Management Discussion and Analysis
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Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation
Courses

Our primary tutoring services, skill courses and test preparation
courses are mainly offered in the learning centres under our “Modern
Bachelor Education” (28 X/ 1) brand (“MBE Centres”) or learning
centres runned by our franchisees (“MBE Franchised Centres”) and
have commenced operations since 1 January 2011. We provide
education services for primary school students from Primary 1 to
Primary 6, which include supervising and tutoring on day-to-day
schoolwork and helping to improve students’ performance in internal
school examinations.

The operation of our primary tutoring services, skill courses and
test preparation courses was done through the acquisition of 60%
shareholding in a company engaging in the business of providing
primary tutoring services to students in Hong Kong in December
2010.

As at 30 June 2011 and of the date of this report, most of our full-
time teachers providing primary tutoring services in our MBE Centres
are bachelor degree holders. In addition, our primary tutoring services,
skill courses and test preparation courses are provided under a “small
class” setting. We believe students at the younger age generally
require greater attention from our tutors to guide them in focusing on
their work. As such, we believe it is crucial to maintain a “small class”
setting for our primary tutoring business in order to efficiently deliver
high quality services.

Aside from tutoring on subjects under the primary school curriculum,
we provide courses specially designed for enhancing primary school
students’ Chinese language, English language and mathematics skills.
These skills courses are diversified and normally cover aspects like
the reading, writing, grammar, sentence structure and vocabulary.
In addition, we offer preparation courses to students on Cambridge
Young Learners’ English Tests. Further to the Cambridge Young
Learners’ English Tests, we offer preparation courses on more
advanced English language tests, such as Key English Test.

During the year, we entered into one more franchise agreement with
a franchisee. As at 30 June 2011, we had 5 MBE Centres and 11
MBE Franchised Centres to deliver our primary tutoring services, skill
courses and test preparation courses. Our MBE Centres are located
in Hunghom, Siu Sai Wan, Tseung Kwan O and Lam Tin while MBE

12 Modern Education Group Limited BER¥E5$£BEIRAL G
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Franchised Centres are located in Lai Chi Kok, Ma On Shan, North
Point, Lei King Wan, Tai Kok Tsui, Tsing Yi, Sham Tseng, Tsuen Wan,
Yuen Long and Kornhill.

For the period from the acquisition of our primary tutoring business
up to the end of the year under review, we recorded a total number
of 4,500 course enrolments for our primary tutoring services, skill
courses and test preparation courses offered in MBE Centres and the

total revenue contributed by MBE Franchised Centres to the Group
reached HK$861,000.
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URBphA FBELU - ta B2 KAE-F
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DA EE TR A 258 ES61,0008 7T ©

PRC Operations

Our PRC operations have commenced since January 2010 and we
have provided technical consultation, management and software
licensing services to Beijing Yasi School and an individual, Mr. Li
Haiming respectively. Beijing Yasi School is a non-public school
sponsored by Beijing Jingli Siya Education Consulting Limited
Company (a company not owned by the Group) providing training on
the English language and test preparation courses, such as TOEFL,
I[ELTS and TOEIC, in the PRC. Programmes and services provided
by Beijing Yasi School are offered under the “BJ IELTS" (1t RHEE)
brand, commonly known as the “Beiya’(1t ) brand. Beijing Yasi
School is currently providing English training courses in Chaoyang
district in Beijing. Owing to Mr. Li Haiming’s inability to obtain the
license for establishment of a school from the PRC government
on or before 31 December 2010, the technical consultation and
management service agreement with Mr. Li Haiming was terminated in
January 2011.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Consultation and Management
Services Agreement entered between us and Beijing Yasi School,
we have the exclusive right to provide technical consultation and
management services to Beijing Yasi School and in return Beijing Yasi
School pays a monthly service fee of RMB100,000 to us and such fee
is subject to adjustment at our sole discretion based on the services
provided. This agreement will remain valid and effective until 30 June
2013.

Pursuant to the Software Licence Agreement entered between us and
Beijing Yasi School, we granted Beijing Yasi School a non-exclusive,
non-assignable and non-transferrable right to use our licensed
software, Modern-C, on its designated operating systems to process
its internal data in the PRC and in return Beijing Yasi School pays a
monthly license fee, equivalent to 5% of its monthly revenue (after
tax), to us. This agreement will remain valid and effective until 30 June
2013.

One of our subsidiaries entered into the Cooperative Framework
Agreement in respect of Beijing Yasi School with Ms. Huang Hui, Mr.
Liu Hongbo and Mr. Yang Qi in September 2008 in order to transfer
the entire equity interest in Beijing Yasi School to the Group. In May
2011, a notice of termination was served to Mr. Liu Hongbo and Mr.
Yang Qi and the Cooperative Framework Agreement shall be deemed
to be terminated upon receipt of the notice by Mr. Liu Hongbo and
Mr. Yang Qi unless any of them raises any objection to the termination
within three months. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
Prospectus dated 20 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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Overseas Studies Consultation Services

During the year, we entered into a cooperation agreement with an
overseas studies consultation company in Hong Kong in May 2011.
Pursuant to this cooperation agreement, we have been providing
overseas studies consultation and related services to students
interested in further studies in overseas institutions, which include high
schools, colleges or graduate colleges mainly in the U.S., the UK,
Australia and New Zealand. These kinds of services have diversified
the Group’s income streams and will be a potential income driver in
the future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The table below is an analysis of the Group’s revenue attributable to

its major service categories for the years ended 30 June 2011 and
2010:

M EOE
KA
TR EH AN EERE E20114F £2010F6 4308

IEFERNEERBEARIH WA :

Year ended 30 June

#H E6A30ALLEE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Secondary tutoring services o2 E R 209,263 308,492
Secondary day school education FREARRE 33,389 33,130
Primary tutoring services /NE B R 7S 5,106 =
English language training and test HRBEIIREARE
preparation courses 17,927 10,712
Technical consultation, management and Rirsh - BB LB R
software licensing services 2,221 879
Overseas studies consultation services BN EFE AR 708 -
268,614 353,213

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 24.0% from
approximately HK$353.2 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$268.6 million for the year 2011. Such decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue from secondary tutoring services from
approximately HK$308.5 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$209.3 million for the year 2011, representing a decrease of
approximately 32.2%, partially offset by the revenue from our primary
tutoring services and overseas studies consultation services of
approximately HK$5.1 million and HK$0.7 million respectively and
the increase in the revenue from English language training and test
preparation courses and technical consultation, management and
software licensing services of approximately HK$7.2 million and
HK$1.3 million respectively.

The decrease of revenue from secondary tutoring services was mainly
due to the combined effect of the early contract termination with one
of top five tutors of the Group in early 2010 and the drop in Form 5/
Secondary 5 course enrolments from approximately 0.32 million for
the year 2010 to approximately 0.12 million for the year 2011, given
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last cohort of Form 5 school candidates had already sat for HKCEE in
2010. As such, the Group’s total course enrolments decreased from
0.76 million for the year 2010 to 0.53 million for the year 2011.

The increase in revenue from English language training and test
preparation courses was mainly due to the increase in course
enrolments from approximately 3,800 for the year 2010 to
approximately 6,000 for the year 2011, when the Group dedicated
more resources such as averagely assigning 2 or more tutors to such
courses.

Other income and expenses

The Group’s other income and expenses increased from
approximately HK$0.08 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$4.5 million for the year 2011. Such increase was mainly due to
(i) a gain of approximately HK$2.4 million resulting from the Group’s
disposal of property, plant and equipment during the year; (i) an
incidental income of approximately HK$0.6 million derived from
provision of printing and related services to a third party; and (jii) a gain
of approximately HK$0.2 million in change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments.

Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs decreased by approximately 6.2% from
approximately HK$58.4 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$54.7 million for the year 2011. Such decrease was mainly due
to the net effect of (i) a decrease of approximately HK$2.2 million
in directors’ emoluments for the year; (i) a decrease of certain staff
in Hong Kong as part of our parallel-ran ME Centres in Shatin and
Mongkok and our ME Centre in Jordan were closed in March, April
and June 2010 respectively, and the number of sales and marketing
staff was reduced; and (i) partly offset by increase in staff cost of
approximately HK$0.4 million related to the Group’s PRC operations.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee decreased by approximately
36.2% from approximately HK$122.2 million for the year 2010 to
approximately HK$78.0 million for the year 2011. Such decrease was
mainly due to (i) the drop of approximately 32.2% or HK$99.2 million
in secondary tutoring service income; (i) approximately HK$0.8 million
of tutor contractor fee refunded for early contract termination and net
off the charge; and (jii) the increase in revenue contribution by English
language training and test preparation course tutors, who had lower
effective contractor fee rate.
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Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments decreased by approximately
7.9% from approximately HK$51.3 million for the year 2010 to
approximately HK$47.2 million for the year 2011. Such decrease was
mainly due to the parallel running of our ME Centres in Shatin during
the corresponding period in 2010 as we gradually relocated from one
premises to a nearby premises and no such parallel running in the year
2011 and the closure of our ME Centre in Jordan in June 2010 upon
expiration of tenancy.

Marketing expenses

The Group’s marketing expenses decreased by approximately
31.4% from approximately HK$20.6 million for the year 2010 to
approximately HK$14.1 million for the year 2011 as the Group
tightened control in media advertising and billboard expenditure, in
anticipation of the drop in Secondary 5 course enrolments for our
secondary tutoring services and secondary day school education.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses decreased by 17.1% from
approximately HK$38.8 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$32.1 million for the year 2011. Such decrease was mainly due to
(i) a decrease in building management fee, air-conditioning charges
and rates by approximately HK$1.6 million which was in line with the
decrease in operating lease payments; (i) a decrease in stationery and
photocopy by approximately HK$2.6 million which was in line with the
decrease in the number of course enrolments of the Group; and (iii)
general tightened control in expenses such travelling, transportation
and motor vehicle.

Listing expenses
Listing expenses refer to the fees paid to various professional parties

in relation to the Company’s listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 July 2011.
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Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately HK$0.2
million for the year 2010 to approximately HK$0.6 million for the
year 2011. Such increase was mainly due to interest paid for short
term loans drawn down in January and May 2011 to settle dividends
declared and paid in 2010 and 2011.

Taxation

The Group’s taxation expenses decreased by 34.0% from
approximately HK$8.5 million for the year 2010 to approximately
HK$5.6 million for the year 2011 as a result of a decrease in profit
before taxation for the year under review. The Group’s effective tax
rate was approximately 21.4% and 17.5% for the years 2011 and
2010 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company, net profit margin
and earnings per share

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by 48.8% from approximately HK$40.1 million for the year
2010 to approximately HK$20.5 million for the year 2011. The Group’s
net profit margin decreased from 11.3% for the year 2010 to 7.6%
for the year 2011. The decrease in net profit margin was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue while some operating expenses such as
rental expenses and staff costs were semi-fixed in nature and could
not be reduced proportional to the revenue. For the year ended 30
June 2011, the earnings per share (basic) of the Company were 7.23
HK cents (2010: 15.42 HK cents). By eliminating the effect of listing
expenses incurred, the earnings per share (basic) of the Company
would be adjusted to 10.90 HK cents (2010: 16.69 HK cents). Details
of the calculation of earnings per share are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dividends

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: N/A).

Liquidity and Financial Resources
We have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework

to manage our short, medium and long — term funding and to satisfy
liquidity management requirements.
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Financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow. As at 30 June 2011, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million
(2010: approximately HK$23.0 million). During the year, net cash inflow
from operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12.8 million (2010: approximately HK$40.4 million).

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2011, the total amount of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings was approximately HK$49.6 million (2010: nil),
all of which was denominated in Hong Kong dollars, with interest
rates ranged from 2% to 7.25% per annum. Details of the Group’s
borrowings are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Gearing ratio

As at 30 June 2011, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
96.2% (2010: approximately 32.1%). Gearing ratio is total debts
divided by the sum of total equity plus total debts. Total debts refer to
total liabilities minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
dividend payable (if any). The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly
due to short term loans drawn down in January and May 2011 to
settle dividends declared and paid in 2010 and 2011.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The number of employees of the Group as at 30 June 2011
was approximately 314. They receive competitive remuneration
packages that are constantly monitored with reference to the market
circumstances, with incentives such as discretionary bonuses
based on the Group’s and individual performance. The Group
provides a comprehensive benefits package and career development
opportunities.
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Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 11 June 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to eligible
employees, including the directors of the Company and any of its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the
year under review, no options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2011, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2011, there was no capital commitment not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements (2010: approximately
HK$0.9 million). Capital commitments in last year mainly represented
the Group’s commitments in relation to acquisition of furniture, fixtures
and equipment used in our learning centres.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had bank deposits amounting to
HK$1,037,000 pledged to banks to secure short term banking
facilities granted to the Group. Save as the aforesaid, the Group did
not have any other charges on the Group’s assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

There were no significant investments held by the Company as at 30
June 2011.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Details of acquisition of a subsidiary during the year are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OUTLOOK
In Hong Kong
Post-abolishment of HKCEE

In the school year of 2011/2012, the adverse one-off effect of
abolishing HKCEE has been mitigated by the parallel running of
HKALE & HKASLE for Form 7 students under the old academic
system and HKDSE for Secondary 6 students under the 334 System.
In addition, the increasing competition and pressure caused to
students when they are facing only one public examination under the
334 System has led to a rising demand for our secondary tutoring
services. Under the 334 System, Liberal Studies is a compulsory
subject in the HKDSE. Our tutoring courses of Liberal Studies have
been well recognised among students and are growing into one of the
potential income drivers of the Group.

Further expansion of our existing businesses in Hong Kong

We intend to further expand our existing businesses in Hong Kong
through internal growth by leveraging our strong brand, economies
of scale, high teaching quality, diverse products and experienced
management team. After the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 4 July 2011, we plan to use
approximately HK$15 million to open 3 to 5 new ME Centres in Hong
Kong between the years ending 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2015.
Furthermore, we plan to use approximately HK$6 million to open 6
to 10 additional MBE Centres in Hong Kong during the years ending
30 June 2012 and 30 June 2014. By doing so, we will expand the
geographical network of our secondary day school and our tutoring
services business in general. As of the date of this report, we have
opened one more MBE Centre in Aberdeen and restructured one MBE
Franchised Centre in Lai Chi Kok as MBE Centre.

We will continue to diversify our courses and services to cater for the
needs of our students in response to the changes in the Hong Kong
education system while expanding our selection of standardized test
preparation courses. We plan to increase our revenues in our existing
markets by offering more classes and subjects at various levels,
attracting new and existing students to enroll in our courses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Vertical expansion into adjacent education services markets

We intend to expand our business vertically by broadening our range
of services to adjacent education services markets with high potential
for growth in Hong Kong, for example, the kindergarten or pre-school
education business. Leveraging on our existing well recognised
educations brands, we believe we are in an advantageous position
as compared to our competitors to further expand our business into
the kindergarten or pre-school education sector. As such, we plan to
use approximately HK$34 million of our listing proceeds on strategic
merger and acquisition of existing players in the kindergarten or pre-
school education field and/or other related services, which have strong
local network, experience, technology, knowhow and connections,
within the coming two to three financial years.

Overseas studies consultation services market

We intend to expand into the overseas studies consultation market
through establishing a joint-venture with certain overseas studies
consultation companies in Hong Kong. We aim to assist our students
in the application and admissions process to overseas education
institutions, which include high schools, colleges or graduate colleges
mainly in the U.S., the U.K., Australia and New Zealand. We also
plan to provide consultation services on visa applications, cultural
adjustment and housing searches. We entered into a cooperation
agreement with an overseas studies consultation company in Hong
Kong in May 2011 and have commenced the provision of overseas
studies consultation and related services since then. We intend to
use approximately HK$6 million of the listing proceeds to operate our
overseas studies consultation services and expect most of which will
be used for administrative and marketing expenses.

Provision of bridging courses

Based on our years of experience in providing secondary tutoring
services, secondary day school education and the English language
training and test preparation courses, we plan to offer accredited
bridging courses to students in Hong Kong who intend to pursue
higher education in the U.K. and Australia. To achieve the same,
we plan to collaborate with a company accredited by the relevant
examination authorities to supply for the examination syllabus and
curriculum while we will provide tutors to deliver the bridging courses
in line with the set syllabus and curriculum. We expect to begin
provision in the bridging courses in September 2011. We intend to use
approximately HK$4 million of our listing proceeds in the provision of
services in relation to the bridging courses or test preparation courses
in Hong Kong and/or the PRC within the upcoming one to three
financial years.
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In the PRC

Extending geographic network into adjacent markets with
high-growth potential

We intend to expand our geographic network into adjacent markets
with high-growth potential in the PRC to reach a wider and more
diverse customer and student base of the Group. Since 2010,
we have already commenced our PRC operation in Beijing and
Guangzhou. In order to align our services with local needs, we plan
to use approximately HK$15 million in setting up 5 learning centres
for children in the PRC between the years ending 30 June 2012 and
30 June 2015 in high-growth potential coastal cities as well as cities
along the high speed train lines.

Within the various services segments in the PRC, we are keen to
explore collaboration opportunities with strong markets players in the
kindergarten & preschool education services segment with relevant
experience and local expertise.

Further developing our presence in the PRC through the
provision of consultation and management services

Apart from providing technical consultation and management and
software licensing services to Beijing Yasi School, we plan to continue
to expand our presence in the PRC through the same kind of
services. We intend to collaborate with PRC well established schools
and institutes in providing test preparatory services for the English
Languages standardized examinations, such as IELTS, TOEFL and
SAT, and tutoring services on major subjects under foreign public
examinations, such as Cambridge International Advanced and
Advanced Subsidiary Levels administered by University of Cambridge
International Examinations, in high growth markets in the PRC.

We will also leverage our existing Hong Kong business and expertise,
particularly in English language training, to extract synergies from
our growing operations and brand building process and network
established by our cooperation agreements with local test preparatory
services providers to expand our English language training services
into other cities with high growth in the PRC.

24 Modern Education Group Limited BER¥E5$£BEHIRALA G

RAPE

HIEH EEWAGERBERED U ZE TS

BMBERFEBEARMOMEREEASERE
NHEEMS EBEERARZ T ENARER
PREAR - B2010F K - HPIE AL R R EM
FAEREAMOPREEE SRR MORBEFTEEH
B RMEEREE2012F6 A30H L FEEH,
201556 A30R IEFE * ) %915,000,000% 7T
£ B A SIS R 08088 T A Ron = AR T
RS REHE R e

ERENZERSE DR HAEERYEEELD
HEMBAHERB OB EAFEBLEREE
WERNBATGEEENEIFRE -

BEERAEZHAREEREE—LRPERREN
Bl HE

BRI R B ERRE RN AR E R R
AJ AR A AN + B PIRT B4 4B 5 B R IR IS K B
RPBNTBEER - RMBARFREREEMS
HARFBEMNPRBRREE HRBZER
2 (I an 3 BIELTS ~ FEARTOEFL X SAT ) f2  fE 7,
BR7S - LAREEINARE R (Hlan g B A 26

AL ECEREMNAREESRREEANBEES
TEEREEZER)RBRIEERNFHE RS-

BRMTTEEDRMAEE L REE (LAR
EHEEYFE)  RBAEE RS EDEE
153 2B - 3 i B R BB 9B 1 R RSB B TR PSR
b 8 5 R 75 (L PR P 2T 7 0 P R L A0 AR A
BRMEEEN RS REETALASER
T o




Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS BEFE

Our Board is responsible and has general powers for the management AAREEE
and conduct of our business. The table below shows certain BIE KRR
information in respect of members of the Board of our Company: EEEZKE

a

]
)

PSRN S I%ﬂ&]ﬂ?&*ﬁ

=5
B — RS - TRIIRAR
:F

ERRE

Date of Joining

Name Age Position the Board
] Fie | {ui mMAEEE A
Ng Kam Lun, Eric 50 Chairman of the Board, Executive Director 11 June 2011
Rita EEeIR WOES 2011F6A118
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine 43 Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer, 1 February 2011
Company Secretary
hEE WITES TR RRIMWE 2011F2H18
Ng Norman 47 Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer 11 June 2011
RL4R WITEE EFUBE 20116 A118
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious 41 Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer 11 June 2011
FiR L WITES CERE 20116 A118
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel 39 Independent Non-Executive Director 4 July 2011
PRES BYERITES 2011F7 A48
Yu Cheeric James 36 Independent Non-Executive Director 4 July 2011
(alias Yu Cheeric)
REAN BYIFHITES 201145744
Choi Kin Cheong 36 Independent Non-Executive Director 4 July 2011
EEE BYIFHITES 20114744

Annual Report 2011 F 3§ 25



Directors and Senior Management

SEkEHERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, aged 50, is an Executive Director, key
founder and the chairman of the Group. Apart from formulating
overall corporate strategies, he leads the business development and
sales and marketing teams. Mr. Ng obtained a degree of bachelor
of arts from The University of Alberta in Canada in 1986. Mr. Ng is a
permitted teacher under the Education Ordinance and has over 14
years of experience in the teaching of the English language. He is also
an author or co-ordinator of English course books and practice books
published by certain publishers. In recent years, he has been involved
in the development of tutorial and training businesses of our Group in
Beijing and Guangzhou. He is now the deputy chairman of the Hong
Kong Federation of Private Educators. Mr. Ng is the brother of Mr. Ng
Norman.

Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, aged 43, is an Executive Director, the
chief executive officer and company secretary of the Group. Ms. Yiu
has been with us since 1997 and has over 13 years of experience in
the education industry. In addition to the financial and legal aspects,
Ms. Yiu is involved in our overall management and development.
Before joining us in 1997, Ms. Yiu joined an international accounting
firm in September 1992 and was later promoted to the position of
assistant manager in September 1995. Ms. Yiu subsequently joined
an investment bank in March 1997 as an internal auditor and resigned
in July of the same year. Ms. Yiu is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario. She was admitted to the University
of Toronto and was named as a faculty scholar during her study and
graduated with distinction in the bachelor of commerce degree in
1992. Ms. Yiu is also the general secretary to the board of the Hong
Kong Federation of Private Educators. Ms. Yiu is the spouse of Mr. Li
Yue Chiu, Frederick.
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Mr. Ng Norman, aged 47, is an Executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Group. Mr. Ng is a course director of our
Continuing Education Fund courses. He teaches as an English tutor at
a number of our learning centres. Mr. Ng has been with us since 2004
and has over 6 years of experience in teaching the English language.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Ng worked at a bank in various positions from
July 1986 to December 2002. Mr. Ng graduated with honours with the
bachelor of business administration degree at the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1986 and becomes a certified public accountant of
the Delaware State Board of Accountancy in the United States in June
2002. He is a permitted teacher under the Education Ordinance. He
also holds a Certificate in Teaching English as a Foreign Language
issued by ICAL Quality Teacher Training. Besides, he is an author of
an [ELTS book published by Beijing Language and Culture University
Press. Mr. Ng is the brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 41, is an Executive Director and
the chief operating officer, who is in charge of the overall management
of our operations. Mr. Lee has been with us since our inception in
1997 and has devoted himself to the education industry for the past
19 years teaching mathematics and related subjects. He is a permitted
teacher under the Education Ordinance. Mr. Lee is an author of a
series of mathematics reference books and the consultant editor
(mathematics) of another mathematics reference book. He had been
a columnist in the education section of a Hong Kong newspaper
since September 2007, commenting on the mathematics teaching
methodology and current education issues. His experience spans
such diverse areas as private education, mathematics teaching,
chain store management, marketing strategy and computer aided
management systems. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong
Kong, with a bachelor of science degree with honours in applied
mathematics in 1992. Mr. Lee is the son of Ms. Chu Wai Ling, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chan Mei Bo, Mabel, aged 39, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. Ms. Chan is the sole proprietor of Mabel
Chan & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practicing). She has over
18 years’ experience in professional accounting field in Hong Kong
and in the PRC. She holds a master degree of business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000
and a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy from
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City University of
Hong Kong) in 1993. Ms. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing), a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Chan
is a certified tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in
2010. She is the immediate past president and council member of
The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors, the past president
and council member of the Association of Women Accountants
(Hong Kong), the council member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Ms. Chan was appointed as a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel of The Financial Reporting Council by the Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury of Hong Kong, a member of the
CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee appointed by the Secretary
for Commerce and Economic Development of Hong Kong, a member
of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel and a member of the
Public Affairs Forum of Hong Kong Secretariat Home Affairs Bureau.

Ms. Chan has gained experience in the education industry through
serving as a member of the Advisory Board on Accountancy of the
Lingnan University since 1 September 2010, the main responsibilities
of which involve, inter alia, the planning and reviewing of (i) level, length
and relevance of courses or programmes of the University concerned
in relation to local needs; (ii) the prospects of local employment for
graduates; (i) the adequacy of the equipment and other resources
of the academic unit(s) of the University to fulfill local needs; (iv) the
development of teaching and other activities carried out jointly by the
academic units of the University and the appropriate sector of the
community; (v) investigation consultancy and other services given by
the academic units of the University; and (vi) the assistance which the
community can give to further the objectives of the University by way
of practical training facilities, the provision of part-time teaching staff
and equipment, the award of scholarship, student-fellowships.
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Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely, Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (stock code: 1170)
and a listed company on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, namely, Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
8153). Ms. Chan was also an independent non-executive director of
China Properties Investment Holdings Limited, a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0736) for the
period from March 2007 to April 2009.

Mr. Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric), aged 36, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Yu has more than five years
of experience in auditing, advisory business services and finance
management. For the period from September 1997 to September
2001, Mr. Yu worked as an accountant in the assurance and advisory
business services department of an international accounting firm.
Between October 2005 and March 2007, Mr. Yu worked in the
financial control department of an electricity company in Hong Kong
and subsequently joined a manufacturing company, Shenzhen
International Group Holdings Limited, as the company secretary
between May 2007 and August 2008, both of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yu graduated
from The California State University with a degree of bachelor of
science in business administration (accountancy) in 1997. He became
an associate member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants on 20 October 2001 and a certified public accountant of
the State of Delaware on 20 September 2006.

Mr. Choi Kin Cheong, aged 36, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Choi is currently a partner of a law firm in Hong Kong
specialising in corporate advisory. Mr. Choi was admitted as a solicitor
to the High Court of Hong Kong in 2002 and as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales in 2008. Mr. Choi graduated
from Queen Mary and Westfield College, University of London with
a master degree in laws in 2003. He obtained a bachelor degree of
laws and a postgraduate certificate in laws from The University of
Hong Kong in 1999 and 2000 respectively. He also obtained a higher
diploma in business studies from the City University of Hong Kong in
1996.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Date of Joining

Name Age Position the Group

] Fie % 61 A 5E B8
Chan Kay Sang, Kason 40 General manager 8 May 1997

PR 40 2 R 199745 A8H

Li Yue Chiu, Frederick 43 Vice-President (PRC) 1 December 2010
ED-&] Blad () 2010612418
Mak Tat Ming, Desmond 41 Marketing director 18 June 2009

2 E B 5 H R B 200946 A 18H

Mr. Chan Kay Sang, Kason, aged 40, is our general manager. Mr.
Chan graduated from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known
as City University of Hong Kong) where he obtained a degree of
bachelor of arts in business studies with honours in 1992. Mr.
Chan has been with us since our inception in 1997. He has over 18
years of experience in school administration. Prior to joining us, Mr.
Chan worked for a private education institution between January
19938 and May 1997. Mr. Chan is currently the school manager,
supervisor and principal of our certain registered ME Centres in Hong
Kong respectively. He is responsible for the local development and
expansion of our Group.

Mr. Li Yue Chiu, Frederick, aged 43, is our Vice-President (PRC).
Mr. Li joined us in 2010 and is currently involved in the business
development of the Group in the PRC. Before joining our Group, he
was employed by a manufacturing company as a general manager
between August 1995 and August 2009 and was responsible for
managing a garment manufacturing facility in the PRC. Since June
2006 till his joining our Group in 2010, Mr. Li was a managing director
of another manufacturing company. Mr. Li is the spouse of Ms. Yiu Wai
Yee, Catherine.

Mr. Mak Tat Ming, Desmond, aged 41, is our marketing director. Mr.
Mak graduated from Monash University, Australia with a bachelor’s
degree in business in 1997. Mr. Mak has over 11 years’ experience in
the field of sales and marketing. Prior to joining us in June 2009, Mr.
Mak worked as an assistant general manager at a telecommunication
company in Hong Kong between December 2007 and February 2009.
He was employed as an assistant director of business development
at a broadcasting company between November 2005 and July 2007.
Between April 1995 and February 2002, Mr. Mak also worked for
a broadcasting company initially as a trainee and as an associate
director when he left the company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWS

The Board presents the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION AND INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Through a series of group reorganization procedures, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of group
reorganization are set out in the Prospectus.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 July 2011 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year. Details of
principal subsidiaries of the Group as of 30 June 2011 are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHS

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 75 of
the annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2011.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering will be
utilised in the manner consistent with that stated under the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2011 is scheduled to be held on Monday, 21 November 2011.
A notice convening the Annual General Meeting will be issued and
disseminated to shareholders of the Company in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The share register of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
16 November 2011 to Monday, 21 November 2011 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company, all completed share transfer forms
accompanying with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 November 2011.
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Report of the Directors

EHEEBHS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended
30 June 2008 and 2009, and from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011
on pages 75 to 148 in this annual report, is set out below:

MERHBRE

AEBRBEANEANRFEENGEREE EEH
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Results 4
Year ended 30 June
#E6A30HILEE
2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue LN 268,614 353,213 360,416 309,386
Other income and expenses Hip A RS 4473 79 1,672 1,111
Staff costs BIRA (54,717) (58,361) (49,544) (44,284)
Tutor contractor fee BMARE (77,995) (122,225) (137,266) (120,118)
Operating lease payments MEREMT (47,198) (51,270) (36,936) (30,658)
Marketing expenses MiSHERY (14,124) (20,597) (17,266) (15,170)
Printing costs HFE A (394) (583) (558) (607)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (9,454) (9,443) (7,166) (5,306)
Other operating expenses Hin@ g% (32,135) (38,762) (38,463) (28,645)
Listing expenses i mix (10,408) (3,292) -
Finance costs UBER (556) (224) (253) (372)
Profit before taxation BR 0 A A 26,106 48,535 74,636 65,337
Taxation BIE (5,596) (8,477) (12,327) (10,795)
Profit for the year FERH 20,510 40,058 62,309 54,542
Profit for the year attrioutable to: UTATEEEERER:
Owners of the Company ARREBA 20,538 40,076 57,725 49,982
Non-controlling interests RS (28) (18 4,584 4,560
Total comprehensive income for the year NTATEGEEFEEZE
attributable to: L ONEE
Owners of the Company AREERA 20,690 40,088 57,725 49,982
Non-controling interests IR R (28) (18) 4,584 4,560
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Assets and liabilities BERAER
As at 30 June
R6A30R

2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FEr FET FET
Total assets BEE 98,462 96,821 89,293 105,556
Total liabilities BEE 95,018 38,398 45,940 42,605

Note: The results and financial position of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2007 is not disclosed above as such information is not disclosed
in the Prospectus.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during the year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme of the Company was adopted pursuant
to a resolution in writing of all shareholders passed on 11 June
2011 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Option
Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel and
to provide additional incentives or rewards to employees, Directors,
consultants, business associates and advisers of the Company for
their contribution to the Company and to promote our success. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (the “Effective
Date”), subject to earlier termination by the Directors and approved in
advance by the shareholders in a general meeting. The Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effecting for a period commencing from
the Effective Date and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the business day
preceding the tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date. The terms of
the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of
Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the following,
who is or will be on the date of option grant:

(@)

a person who is in full-time or part-time employment by any
member of our Group;

a director (whether executive or non-executive) of any member of
our Group;

a person as shall have been designated by the Directors as such,
being a person who provides consultancy/advisory services
(legal, technical, financial, corporate, managerial advice or
services or otherwise) to any member of our Group;

a supplier of goods or services to any member of our Group;

a customer of any member of our Group;

a person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of our Group;

a person or entity that promotes the sales and marketing of the
goods of, or provides any promotional support to, any member of
our Group;

a provider of financial assistance (directly or indirectly) to any
member of our Group;

an agent, a business affiliate or business partner, joint venture
partner or strategic partner, who/which at the sole discretion of
the Directors, has contributed to the business of any member of
our Group and/or the Group as a whole;

any other person or entity, group or class of persons or entities
from time to time determined by the Directors as having
contributed or may contribute to the business development and/
or growth of any member of our Group and/or the Group as a
whole;

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
shares commenced on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date and at the date of this report.
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The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including exercised, cancelled
or outstanding options) to each participant (other than a substantial
shareholder, chief executive or Director as explained below) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules), are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options).
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general mesting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by a
participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Directors, which period
may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant
of share options but shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years
from the date of the conditional adoption of the Share Option Scheme
by our shareholders subject to the provisions for early termination
under the Share Option Scheme.

The amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under an
option in the event of the option being exercised shall be determined
by the Directors in their absolute discretion and shall be not less than
the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of such option (which must be a Business Day);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant of such
option; and

(i) the nominal value of the shares.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no stipulation that would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders in respect of such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 30 June 2011 and up to the date
of this annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, were granted any
right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate, nor had exercised any such right.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Since the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 4 July 2011, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 30 June 2011.

RESERVES

Details of change in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
30 June 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2011, the Company did not have reserves available for
distribution in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate

contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
year.
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During the year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group’s top
five tutors, who entered into service contracts with us, accounted for
58.56% of the Group’s total tutor contractor fee for the year ended 30
June 2011 (2010: 51.45%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable to
the Group’s most top tutor accounted for 15.2% of the Group’s total
tutor contractor fee for the year ended 30 June 2011(2010:14.9 %).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group, excluding
the independent tutors, combined by value which are not of a capital
nature, contributed to less than 30% in value of such supplies
purchased during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Directors consider
each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings or determined by the Board after
obtaining shareholders’ authorisation at general meetings with
reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance as
well as the Group’s results.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company. Each letter of appointment
is for an initial term of three years commencing on 4 July 2011 and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Those appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the Articles of Associations. None of
Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has entered into a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Chairman of the Board)
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine
(Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary)
Ng Norman (Chief Financial Officer)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Chief Operating Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Chan Mei Bo, Mabel
Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric)
Choi Kin Cheong

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board during the year shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation and all the Directors who retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

As such, all Directors will retire from office as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies of each of the Directors and senior management are
set out on page 25 to page 30 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which certain Executive Directors have
substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are set out in
the section headed “Connected Transactions” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which the
Company, its controlling companies or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 30 June
2011 and up to the date of this annual report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Dealings in the shares of the Company commenced on the Stock
Exchange on 4 July 2011, which was later than the end of the
reporting period. As at the date of this annual report, so far as it
is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be entered in the register to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as follows:

FERRREGAREBBROHESR KR

ARRBRGF2011F7 A48 (BIRREERZE)
REERPIFREE - NAFHRAH - pLARRHEM
EEFTBTRAEMA U TALTRARRR
DHBEBRO P HEERELSREERBERIEZ S
KRG R (TEZS R BAEEA ) EXVEBFE 3364
ARLARRRFENSCMavESENT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name Nature of interest shares held the Company
R SANGTE :)
&/ e ERKtE RN A BHEILL
Speedy Harvest Investments Limited Beneficial owner 157,405,421 39.35%
(“Speedy Harvest”) ExnBEBAA
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 157,405,421 39.35%
RBBAE (A1) RS IR B B
Beautiful Choice Investments Limited Beneficial owner 47,221,626 11.81%
(“Beautiful Choice”) Ex#EEA
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 47,221,626 11.81%
TERETE (HiF2) PSR B B i
Ms. Chu Wai Ling (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 47,221,626 11.81%
RERRL (Hfid2) REEHEE 6
Classic King Development Limited Beneficial owner 41,819,066 10.45%
(“Classic King”) ERMBA
Mr. Ng Norman (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 41,819,066 10.45%

REMEE (H7L3)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name Nature of interest shares held the Company
EE AT REHN
&/ /ME ERtE Frizlm# e BHESL
Primo Result Limited (“Primo Result”) Beneficial owner 21,305,585 5.33%
BEERLAR (MEE]) EnfEAA
Festival Developments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) (Htit4) REEGEE M ER
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) (Ht5t4) REEHEE R
World Developments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) (Htit4) REZGEE N ER
Innovation Assets Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) (Htit4) REEEEE SR
Sunwah International Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
(Note 4) (Htit4) REEGEE M ER
Sun Wah Capital Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
Note 4) (i7t4) REEEEE R
(
Mr. Choi Koon Shum Jonathan (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
B R it AR A B 2
BERREE (Hit4) R E &
Ms. Kwan Wing Kum, Janice (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 21,305,585 5.33%
BMEE LT (Mid4) REEEEE R
Notes: Mt -
(1) Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric is deemed to be interested in the shares held by (1) 270 2 87 1 55 4 1A Speedy HarvestHy A iEzs »
Speedy Harvest by virtue of his controlling interest in Speedy Harvest. Mr. 18 4% 1% A& 1A Speedy HarvestP#5 I% 17 A #E & 1
Ng is also a director of Speedy Harvest. 25 ° R 9t 4 JF A Speedy HarvestHy = 5 o
(2) Each of Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Ms. Chu Wai Ling is deemed @) BN TR A RRER Z L& B R Beautiful
to be interested in the shares held by Beautiful Choice by virtue of their ChoicefV1E i = - 1% 55 % B #18 A7 Beautiful
respective controlling interest in Beautiful Choice. Mr. Lee is also a ChoiceFT RN A HEAEZ -THRENTA
director of Beautiful Choice. Beautiful Choicef) = = ©
(8) Mr. Ng Norman is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Classic @) N R 55 A M Classic King#I 1 IR #E %5 - #%
King by virtue of his controlling interest in Classic King. Mr. Ng is also a WAR AR Classic KingFTiFiRmPHEA#zE - R
director of Classic King. % 4 I BClassic King®lE = -
(4) Each of Festival Developments Limited, SW Kingsway Capital Holdings (4) i& " Festival Developments Limited * SW

Limited, World Developments Limited, Innovation Assets Limited,
Sunwah International Limited, Sun Wah Capital Limited, Choi Koon
Shum Jonathan, Kwan Wing Kum, Janice is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Primo Result by virtue of their respective controlling
interest in Primo Result.

Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited - World
Developments Limited * Innovation Assets
Limited * Sunwah International Limited * Sun Wah
Capital Limited ~ £58 % - BIFEZE & BN EE BZ
R BESBERARBEEMERNPES
CED
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has not been notified of any other person who had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Dealings in the shares of the Company commenced on the Stock
Exchange on 4 July 2011, which was later than the end of the
reporting period. As at the date of this annual report, the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

B EXBEEI RAFRAH AR B LA
EAEMA TR AR RN HEBRDFHEER
BE s MHIEERPIEXVEE 2R3 J AR AR A
KB X PR BR VR fAIEEE SOR R

EFRERTHARRERG HEKRMGRR
SHEZRRE

RRFRGDH2011F7 A48 (BIRMERR %)
RERARAREER RAFRAY EFHALQA
TETHRABRARAREEEEZE (E& A&
7RG RPIEXVER) BB (D - R HESFH
BEREES MHEGIIE3521R AL A KRR A
FENETMOERMORE AR &3 B
BT EMBETAESETESFRHNREST
A ([1RESTRI ) ARG AR F BB Py 10
T

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in

Name of Directors Nature of interest shares held the Company

15 & 2T BRIEH

EEME HENE Frisikiz & A BHast

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric Interest in a controlled corporation 157,405,421 39.35%
RimAEE REZEHEB @R

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Interest in a controlled corporation 47,221,626 11.81%
FRERE REEHEEO R

Mr. Ng Norman Interest in a controlled corporation 41,819,066 10.45%
REMEE REZHEEf R

Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 4,529,214 1.13%

hEEz L (Hat1) REZEHEE R R
Note:

(1) Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Creative Master Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner, by virtue of her
controlling interest in Creative Master Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including those interests or short positions they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or entered in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the year ended 30
June 2011.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Speedy Harvest, Beautiful Choice,
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Ms. Chu Wai Ling, Classic King, Mr. Ng
Norman, Ultra Strong Group Limited, Mr. Ng Kam Wing, Ms. Lau Yue
Lan, Ms. Ng Choi Fong, Creative Master Holdings Limited and Ms.
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine (together, the “Non-Competing Covenantors”)
has confirmed to the Company of his/her/its compliance with the Non-
competition Deed that he/she/it provided to the Company on 7 June
2011. The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the Non-Competing
Covenantors.

BREXHIEBEEIN RAFHAR EFHAR
A EBITHRA BBIENAR B R E I AEE
(E&EALFH LA ROIEXVER) BBt - BB
MAESFTRAREE S LB E RO EXVEEET
R8DREHMERNRBI MBI ERIAR (B
EREESZRMEEMNBRIEXEFEIESBE
FHENEDRIORR)  IRBEESFRPEEROF
BE2FARAARAFEN B LMD AR
FRBRETRIEMNEARA MBI ERR

NN
KA o

TEHEW

REZE2011F6A308 LFEAN  MELMNEBER
N BEEESITMNERNTHNEERITERA LD
SRR

AR PRE

R 9% 1® %4 - Speedy Harvest » Beautiful Choice
TELEENE - REB LT Classic King » = 2418 5%
A ~Ultra Strong Group Limited~ 2854854 - 2%
Mzt REFZT BIEERERATIRIERE
T (BB THEFREAZADZEAEAAR
AIEREESTHEN201146 A7B AR R BHREA
THFRIE -BUIIENTEETCEMETBRL
BRTRFEERBACETRETHF L -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

One-off Connected Transactions

(A)

Option agreement

During the year, the Company entered into an option agreement
with Ms. Huang Hui, the spouse of Mr. Ng Kam Wing and the
sister-in-law of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, pursuant to which Ms.
Huang Hui agreed to grant an option to the Company to acquire
her equity interest in Beijing Jingli Siya Education Consulting
Limited Company provided PRC law permits such acquisition.
Such option was granted for nil consideration and consideration
based on market value will be payable by the Company upon the
exercise of the option.

(B) Non-Competition deed

a4

During the year, the Company entered into a Non-competition
Deed with each of Non-Competing Covenantors. For more
details, please refer to the section headed “NON-COMPETITON
UNDERTAKINGS” of this report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Tenancy agreements and license agreements in relation to
properties and advertising spaces

Transaction details

Modern Education (Hong Kong) Limited (“Modern Education
HK”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and certain
connected persons of our Company have entered into the
following tenancy agreements and license agreements, whereby
such connected persons leased the following premises and
granted licenses to the Group for the use of the following
premises as our learning centres and/or advertising spaces to
promote and advertise the respective learning centres located in
the same buildings:

FHRRERS

(A)

Actual rental/

FRHMRER B & a9 H# R 5F o € s ik

REHE

ARBNEEMNBRARRRHE (FE)BAR
REN([RAHE (FB) D) EARRNET
B AN RIS IA N A K 5F A2 A 13 % © 1B
It EREATRASELE AT SRR
BHERUTESMERARENHEF LK
SHEEREEUREREFTNERHE S
OB 2 B FF R B R AE

license fee
(HKS)
EREe/
RERR
(B1) Proposed
Year ended annual cap (HKY)
30 June BREELR (27)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces EXE6A30H Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
HAGEAAL R BHAEAA/EF B/ R LEE HECANALEE 8 (i)
2011 2011 2012 2013
Smarter Choice Limited Modern Education HK Shops 8-9, Level 1, Fanling Town Center, 2,121,000 2,125,000 1,785,000 ni & 1June 2011 to
18 Fanling Station Road, Fanling, New 15 April 2012
Territories, Hong Kong (Note 2 and 3)
RETERAT BRYB (BE) EERRANEN UK 8RN S 01156A1BZE
ERES1ESORE (HH2K3) 201254 715R
Strategic Fortune Limited ~~ Modern Education HK 4/F, Union Park Centre, No.771-775 nil & nil & 972,000 972,000 1 July 2011 to
Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong 30 June 2013
(Note 4)
ZEARAT RRYE (BE) BENEARET-TTSRARS L4 01157R1BE
(Hita) 20136430
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK 3/F, Cigna Tower, 482 Jaffe Road, Hong 2,606,000 2,623,000 2,404,000 ni & 1June 2011 to
Kong (Notes 2 and §) 9 May 2012
EBRARAR RRAE (FE) BRI LB ERRRRBT LI 201156A18%E
(H#2R3) 201295498
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Actual rental/
license fee
(HKS)
EREg/
RFERE
(B7) Proposed
Year ended annual cap (HKS)
30 June BHEEELRE1T)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces #E6A30A Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
LN V8 £ BHAERANBR B/ REd LEE B F6A0HLEE 3 Nl
2011 2011 2012 2013
Modern Education HK Shops 9A and 9B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 4,111,000 4,723,000 4,841,000 4,841,000 1 June 2011 to
11-17 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, 30 June 2013
New Territories, Hong Kong
(Notes 2 and 3)
BRAUE () BRTRDEDBEEATREERD 011F6A1HE
BINRIBRE (Hiit2k%3) 2013564308
Subtotal /N5t 6,717,000 7,346,000 7,245,000 4,841,000
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK Signage space designated no.3 on the 46,000 46,000 42,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
side wall of Cigna Tower, 482 Jaffe 9 May 2012
Road, Hong Kong (Note 3)
ERERAA BRAE (B) B A EBIREERIIRRRL 201156A18ZE
I mE R (Hit3) 201245A9A
Modern Education HK 14 advertising spaces at Shops 9A and 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000 1 June 2011 to
9B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 11-17 Sha Tin 30 June 2013
Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong (Note 3)
BRAE (B) EATAYBLBEAATREERD 011F6A1HE
2OAR B MIABBE AL (Hi23) 201356A308
Subtotal /&t 286,000 286,000 282,000 240,000
Regent Mega Limited Modern Education HK Shop 12 of G/F to 1/F, Shop 13 of G/F, 3,402,000 3,413,000 2,874,000 nil & 1June 2011 to
Cheong Wah Building, 289-291 and 30 April 2012
295-301 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Tenitories, Hong Kong
(Note 2 and 3)
BEERAR BRAUE () ERMREEEIIRHK269-2911 011F6A1HE
205-301REENEH T E1E125H 2012547308
TSR (H#2Kk3)
Modern Education HK Shops $102-104, S104A and S133- 2,895,000 2,896,000 3,136,000 nil & 1 June 2011 to
140, 2/F, Amoy Plaza, Amoy Gardens 6 June 2012
Phase I'and Il, 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (Note 2 and 3)
BRHE (5%) BENEEEARTTRAALERR 201156A1HZE
MR AT 5212S1022104 - S104A 201256768
S133E 1405 (M7712K3)
Subtotal /&t 6,297,000 6,309,000 6,010,000 il &
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Actual rental/
license fee
(HKS)
EREe/
RHERE
(1) Proposed
Year ended annual cap (HKS)
30 June BREELR (F7)
Licensor/Landlord Licensee/Tenant(s) Premises/Advertising spaces EX6A308 Year ended/ending 30 June Term (Note 1)
HAEAA B EHTERAN R B/ R LEE EEOASALEE F8 (Hit1)
2011 2011 2012 2013
Regent Mega Limited Modem Education HK The wall surface adjacent to Shops S102- 1,000 1,000 1,000 nil & 1June 2011 to
104, S104A and S133-140, 2/F, Amoy 6 June 2012
Plaza, Amoy Gardens Phase | and Il, 77
Ngau Tau Kok Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (Note 3/
BEERAA RRYE (BE) EENEFEARTRAALES IR 01156R18E
B ATEH2125102-5104 - S104AR 201266 /16H
S133-140S B A EVE A (J/273)
Modern English Limited Modern Education HK Shop 3A, G/F-2/F, Union Park Centre, 3,803,000 3,828,000 3,828,000 3,509,000 1 June 2011 to
771-775 Nathan Road, Kowloon, 31 May 2013
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 5)
AREFERRA RRYE (BE) BANEBRET-TTSRETR O T W1F6AIAZE
ZOIOARER (M1iE2Rk5) 2013%5A31H
Modern Education HK Shop 220, Park Central, 9 Tong Tak 190,000 193,000 198,000 205,000 1 June 2011 to
Street, Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, New 30 June 2013
Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BRYE (BE) ERNABEREREEHR 01156A1BZ
BERT L2054 (Hit2k3) 201364308
Modern Education HK Shop 220b, Central Heights, 9 Tong Tak 2,492,000 2,492,000 2,563,000 2,661,000 1 June 2011 to
Street, Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, New 30 June 2013
Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BRYE (B4) ERNARERERERHIORBERR 01156A1BZ
BE200%E 4R (Wit2R3) 2013564308
Subtotal /"5 6,485,000 6,513,000 6,589,000 6,365,000
Phoenix Investment Limited ~ Modern Education HK Units 401-405A, 4/F, Citylink Plaza, 1 1,815,000 1,840,000 1,910,000 1,756,000 1 June 2011 to
Shatin Station Circuit, Shatin, New 31 May 2013
Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
ERREBRAA BRAE (BE) BEMRDBEYBEREIREHES 011E6A1BZE
412401-405AE L (H1#2K3) 2013%5A31H
World Wide Resources Modern Education HK Shops 8A and 8B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 9,760,000 9,760,000 9,765,000 9,783,000 1 June 2011 to
Management Limited 11-17 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, 30 June 2013
New Territories, Hong Kong
(Notes 2 & 3)
BTEREBARAR RRYUEB (FE) BEMRDBLBEENATHREERL 011E6A1EE
2ZBARBBIH (M1:72K23) 2013456430
Total & £ 33,482,000 34,180,000 34,559,000 23,957,000
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Notes:

(1)  The licenses will expire on the expiry dates of the respective
tenancy agreements or license agreement entered into between
the relevant connected persons and the landlord or licensor of the

premises or advertising space.

(2)  The landlord refused to novate the relevant existing tenancy or
license agreement to us without providing any specific reasons.

(8)  We have notified the relevant landlord or licensor about the
use, possession and occupation of the premises or the use of
advertising space by us. However, despite our requests to the
relevant landlord or licensor to novate the relevant existing tenancy
or license agreement to us while they are still in force or provide
license or consent for us to continue to use, possess and occupy
the premises or continue to use the advertising space, we have not
obtained such consent from the relevant landlord or licensor. The
relevant connected person is therefore in breach of the relevant
existing tenancy or license agreement entered into between the
relevant connected persons and the landlord or licensor that may
entitle the landlord or licensor to terminate the relevant existing

tenancy or license agreement.

(4) The premises were rented by Strategic Fortune Limited as the
landlord to us, pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 25 May

2011.

(5)  We have obtained consent from the relevant landlord to allow us to

use, possess and occupy the premises.

The license fees payable by us to each of these connected
persons in relation to the premises and/or advertising spaces
shall be the same as the rental and/or license fees (including
service charges and other expenses, if any) payable by Smarter
Choice Limited, Strategic Fortune Limited, Online Global
Limited, Regent Mega Limited, Modern English Limited, Phoenix
Investment Limited and World Wide Resources Management
Limited to the landlords and/or licensors under the relevant
existing tenancy and/or license agreements. As such, these
connected persons have, directly and indirectly, no interest in

these continuing connected transactions.

48 Modern Education Group Limited KR #E%£BHR A8

ES

(1) ZEHFAEABREEREATRSARE
SRR TR A AT LR E AR
AT E A 16h 5 2 HA B i m o

@ EIRARUEMARBES ERUHNME
HRBEA/REBREHBOREGHEONKGT
A A

@ AKREDBNAEEIHFAEAABRAE
SEER FEROBZENERERES
fL-ATM BEAEEEZREMETHHFA
ERARFTOEERGERRMRE BN
BEML LA AL MAARENIRAR
HRFFAERGHRDRAER LA AKRAER
PIEEER BEREREMZENEXRERRE
PSR AR B W REUS B B 2 R 3RF
AERANRE -Eit HEBEALER
HEEEATHETIRFAEAATTING
IR G MA KA AL A ME R
ERAABEZILBRENIREHEORFAEA
ek -

@) BFHREEARAR (EAEX)REAHA
2011 F5 A5 M ERERASE LA -

6 AEECRBHEZINRE AFAKHE
EREEREBEM-

AEBMBSHNR, LESMLENSZE0E
ALTHRFAIBEREREZTARAR ZEBR
NE BEARAF HHEARQA HRKE
EAAERAR BRUEARARMRFER
EEARARRBHEBREELOR, LT
ERBRENEEBLE =X E R KT
AEAANES R KA ERR (2IER
BEREMSH (E)) Bt ZFE
ATTERZEFBREXSHEEER ME

=L




Report of the Directors

&

(B)

F8HS

Connection of the parties

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, our chairman and Executive Director,
is the sole shareholder of both Smarter Choice Limited and
Strategic Fortune Limited. Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Ms.
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, both our Executive Directors, each
holds 50% shareholding in Online Global Limited while Regent
Mega Limited is owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Lee and
Ms. Yiu, respectively. Mr. Ng and Ms. Yiu hold 66.67% and
33.33% shareholding respectively in Modern English Limited.
Ms. Yiu is the sole shareholder of both Phoenix Investment
Limited and World Wide Resources Management Limited.
As such, Smarter Choice Limited, Strategic Fortune Limited,
Online Global Limited, Regent Mega Limited, Modern English
Limited, Phoenix Investment Limited and World Wide Resources
Management Limited are connected persons of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the above tenancy
agreements and license agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of our Company under the Listing Rules.
As the above tenancy agreements and the license agreements
are similar in nature and entered into with the same group of
connected persons, the transactions contemplated under these
agreements are aggregated under Rule 14A.25 of the Listing
Rules.

Tutor service contract and license contract

() Contracts with Many Corporation Limited and Mr. Ng Kam
Lun, Eric

Transaction details

On 11 February 2011, Many Corporation Limited and Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric entered into a service contract with us,
pursuant to which Many Corporation Limited agreed to
procure Mr. Ng to provide tutoring services to our students
for a term commencing from 1 September 2011 and
expiring on 30 June 2013.

(B)

=o)L
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Pursuant to the service contract, Many Corporation
Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by the Company
calculated at, depending on the number of classes to
be conducted by tutors and teaching assistants and not
by Mr. Ng in person, a commission rate (comprising the
commission and gratuity components) in the range of 52%
and 60% of the tuition fees paid by the students to us,
net of any refunds or discounts or rebates given by the
Company to the students and the relevant printing expenses
for each tutorial course. In the event that the lessons are
entirely taught by other tutors and teaching assistants
with the help of various teaching materials, 52% of the
net tuition fee aforesaid would be paid by the Company
to Many Corporation Limited. On the other hand, when all
the lessons are taught by Mr. Ng in person, 60% of the net
tuition fee aforesaid would be paid to Many Corporation
Limited by the Company. In addition, the tutor contractor
fee payable by the Company to Many Corporation Limited
would be the product of the relevant commission rate and
the net tuition fee aforesaid subject to deductions of other
expenses, such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with the classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference
materials and copyright license fees. Further, if Many
Corporation Limited fails to complete the service contract
before its expiration, save where it is provided for under
the service contract, Many Corporation Limited shall repay
the entire gratuity component of the net tuition fee to the
Company.

On 11 February 2011, Many Corporation Limited and Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric entered into a license contract with us,
pursuant to which Many Corporation Limited agreed to
grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable license to the
Company to use and reproduce the teaching materials
prepared by Mr. Ng, its sole shareholder, for the tutorial
courses on English to be organised by the Company
for secondary school students and to be conducted by
teaching assistants with the said teaching materials for a
term commencing from 1 September 2011 and expiring on
30 June 2013.
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Pursuant to the license contract, when the entirety of a
tutorial course is conducted by teaching assistants without
the presence of Mr. Ng in the event that Mr. Ng is no longer
engaged under the service contract, Many Corporation
Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by the Company
calculated at a rate of 52% of the tuition fees paid by the
students to us, net of any refunds or discounts or rebates
given by the Company to the students and the relevant
printing expenses for each tutorial course.

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract and license contract with Many
Corporation Limited and Mr. Ng for the three years ending
30 June 2013 will be as set out in the following table.

REBHFEQ SHBNEEAHEY
BEHRE YEILEEL (REETH
XERRBAK) AIXHERAAAE
REARBXNETER -ZBERIEK
BEXNTHMNMEE CRARASE
TEENEARRKFTHHEN - AR
5= 8 I #0 A8 B8 EN I 79 32 ) #952%5T
o

EEMFTRBEE2013F6H30H 1L =&
FE AXHAERQABARREETILN
RBEHLFFAANETNFERS S
BBEN TR

Proposed Annual Cap
Year ended/ending 30 June

BREELR
# E6A30H LEE

2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) CHEEIN ()] - 23,000 25,000
Net tuition fee (B) FHEEDB = HK$37475 7T HK$38875 T
Estimated average commission rate (C) mErFHEAE R0 - 53.8% 53.8%
Estimated other expenses (D) EEtEMmRAL0) - HK$3,139,000%7T  HK$3,497,000/8 T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 1) BEEBS (1) Nil %  HK$1,490,000/87C  HKS$1,714,000% 7T
Note: Kiat -

1. Tutor contractor fee =AxBxC-D

There was no payment under the service contract and
license contract with Many Corporation Limited and Mr. Ng
for the year ended 30 June 2011.

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
Many Corporation Limited, both Many Corporation Limited
and Mr. Ng are connected persons of the Company and
the transactions contemplated under the service contract
and the license contract constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

1. EfEBE=AxBxC-D
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(i) Contracts with ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng Norman

Transaction details

On 1 September 2010, Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman
entered into a service contract with us, pursuant to which
ltaly Limited agreed to procure Mr. Ng to provide tutoring
services to our students for a term commencing from 1

September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2013.

Pursuant to the service contract, Italy Limited is entitled to
a fee payable by the Company calculated at a commission
rate of HK$2,838 per student per course (with lecture
only) or HK$4,015 per student per course (with both
lecture and tutorial class). In a lecture, Mr. Ng would be
teaching a larger group of students with key concepts
and their application demonstrated, whereas in a tutorial
class, he would focus more on question answering skills.
Also, given the smaller group of students in a tutorial
class, Mr. Ng Norman would be able to interact more with
students in a tutorial class compared to a lecture setting.
The commission rates aforesaid are calculated based on
(i) the tuition fees we expect to charge from students net
of any refunds or discounts; and (ii) fee per student which
the Company would expect to pay for lecture and tutorial
classes taught by Mr. Ng, and were determined after arm’s
length negotiation. Given that the duration of the lecture
component of each course is 45 hours whereas the duration
of each course which consists of both lecture and tutorial
class components is 90 hours, the commission rate for
both lecture and tutorial class is more than that applicable
to the case where Mr. Ng teaches for lecture only. Each
course consisting of both lecture and tutorial class is
charged by the Company at HK$12,800 for 15 lessons of
lecture and 15 lessons of tutorial, with 90 hours of teaching
hours in total. In addition, the tutor contractor fee payable
by the Company to Italy Limited would be the product of
the relevant commission rate aforesaid and the number of
students taught by Mr. Ng, subject to deductions of other
expenses, such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with his classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference

materials and copyright license fees.
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(i)

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract with ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng for
the three years ending 30 June 2013 will be as set out in the
following table.

B E2EAEE20135F6 300 1E =1
FE -HEERMABERAGRREERTL
MIRBEHNETHNEFER B IR
e

Proposed Annual Cap
Year ended/ending 30 June

EREELR
#HE6H0RLLEE
2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) HEEEAHY 600 600 620
Commission rate payable to BEE4BAREENT
Mr. Ng per student per course (5) REEMEEEB) HK$2,83875 T HK$4,0157 T HK$4,0157 T
Estimated other expenses (C) et EfM A0 HK$807,0007% 7T HK$809,0007% 7T HK$809,0007% 7T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 7) BOABE (1) HK$896,000% 7L HK$1,600,000E 7T  HK$1,680,0007% 7T
Note: Biat -

1. Tutor contractor fee = AxB-C

The actual transaction amount under the service contract
with ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng for the year ended 30 June
2011 was approximately HK$763,000.

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
ltaly Limited, both ltaly Limited and Mr. Ng are connected
persons of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the service contract constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Contracts with Sense Publishing Company Limited and Mr.
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Transaction details

On 1 September 2010, Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious entered into a service
contract with us, pursuant to which Sense Publishing
Company Limited agreed to procure Mr. Lee to provide
tutoring services to our students for a term commencing
from 1 September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2018.

(i)

1. EfM#ABE=AxB-C

HE201146H30H IEFE - EE AF
BRARRBRAETINREEOET
B 5 & 5% 5763,00078 T °

& 77 e BR B

HRARBNMITEEFR EERE RN
BRARMNME—BR WEANBERA
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RS
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Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing
Company Limited is entitled to certain fees payable by
the Company calculated at, depending on the number
of classes to be conducted by tutors and teaching
assistants and not by Mr. Lee in person, a commission
rate (comprising the commission and gratuity components)
in the range of 47% to 55% for the academic year 2010-
2011 and from 52% to 60% for the academic years 2011-
2012 as well as 2012-2013, of the tuition fees paid by the
students to us, net of any refunds or discounts or rebates
given by the Company to the students and the relevant
printing expenses for each tutorial course. In the event
that the lessons are entirely taught by member tutors
and teaching assistants with the help of various teaching
materials, 47% for the academic year 2010-2011 or 52%
for the academic years 2011-2012 as well as 2012-2013 of
the net tuition fee aforesaid would be paid by the Company
to Sense Publishing Company Limited. On the other hand,
when all the lessons are taught by Mr. Lee in person, 55%
for the year ended 31 August 2011 or 60% for the two
years ending 31 August 2013, of the net tuition fee aforesaid
would be paid to Sense Publishing Company Limited by
the Company. Besides, the tutor contractor fee payable by
the Company to Sense Publishing Company Limited would
be the product of the relevant commission rate and the net
tuition fee aforesaid subject to further other deductions,
such as the costs of teaching assistants and certain
other costs associated with his classes, including certain
promotional and marketing events, reference materials and
copyright license fees. In the event that if the number of
attending students in a month exceeds 3,000, an additional
commission of 5% of such net tuition fee attributable to the
excess in the number of students would be payable by the
Company. Further, if Sense Publishing Company Limited
fails to complete the service contract before its expiration,
save where it is provided for under the service contract,
Sense Publishing Company Limited shall repay the entire
gratuity component of the net tuition fee to the company.
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B Z=2013F8A31H IEMEAFE o 5 M
PAEEHRERAR SN LMFHEE
B155%3%60% © it 5h + A A Al A4 T 8F
BELRAERATNEMARE RIEH
FEERFULMFHBEENOTE  HAE
—SEH AR Gl B BN E
AREBEARENETHMER  B1F
ATEERMGHETE 2EME R
RiEE -EXAOERENEE ABEA
3,000% ' RIZR N A FERABE R B2
EABEGERFHEBS%REIMES
L AN - W BR B E AR A BR A Bl R AETE AR
BENINEBTHRRBEL  BRREEH
BFRTREEIN HEELRERAGZA
MARAREEFHBEERNMINES 25

{/'\ ®




Report of the Directors
EEEWS

On 1 September 2010, Sense Publishing Company
Limited and Mr. Lee entered into a license contract with
us, pursuant to which Sense Publishing Company Limited
agreed to grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable
license to the Company to use and reproduce the teaching
materials prepared by Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses
to be organised by the Company for secondary school
students and to be conducted by teaching assistants with
the said teaching materials for a term commencing from 1
September 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2013.

Pursuant to the license contract, when the entirety of
a tutorial course is conducted by teaching assistants
without the presence of Mr. Lee in the event that Mr. Lee
is no longer engaged under the service contract, Sense
Publishing Company Limited is entitled to certain fees
payable by the Company calculated at a rate of 49% for
the year ended 31 August 2011 and a rate of 54% for the
two years ending 31 August 2013 of the tuition fees paid
by the students to us, net of any refunds or discounts or
rebates given by the Company to the students and the
relevant printing expenses for each tutorial course. If the
number of attending students in a month exceeds 3,000, a
commission of 5% of such net tuition fee attributable to the
excess is payable by the Company.

R2010F9A1H -HEEHRABRA
AR FHREBARNRILEHEH &
I BEEHRERAGRERARQF
B — BRETAIERSTE &
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e
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The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts
under the service contract and license contract with Sense
Publishing Company Limited and Mr. Lee for the three years

2 E2 AN E E2013F6 A30H IE =1
FE HPBEHREEAREELE
AIVHREEHRETFENETHNEE

ending 30 June 2013 will be as set out in the following RGEHERHENR L
table.
Proposed Annual Cap
Year ended/ending 30 June
BEEELR
B F6A30HLEE

2011 2012 2013
Estimated number of students (4) fHEt2E AN 15,194 24,000 22,000
Net tuition fee (B) FHEEB HK$3817%5 7T HK$3787%5 7T HK$3817 7T
Estimated average commission rate (C) EHEEN R 49.6% 54.6% 54.6%
Estimated other expenses (D) et EREZ0) HK$1,594,00087C  HK$2,187,00087C  HK$1,948,000% 1T
Tutor contractor fee (Note 1) EMABE (f1) HK$1,278,000% 7  HK$2,760,000&7T  HK$2,626,000/% 7T
Note: Kiat -

1. Tutor contractor fee = AxBx C-D

The actual transaction amount under the service contract
and license contract with Sense Publishing Company
Limited and Mr. Lee for the year ended 30 June 2011 was
approximately HK$1,206,000.

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Lee, our Executive Director, is the sole shareholder of
Sense Publishing Company Limited, both Sense Publishing
Company Limited and Mr. Lee are connected persons of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
service contract and license contact constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

1. EEABE=AxBxC-D

HE2011F6A30H L FE - HEBE
HRERATREFEETIHRBEE L
EETEHNBETHNEBRRGSBENR
1,206,000 7T °

& 77 By R B
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(C) Agreements relating to Beijing Yasi School (C) FRIRBESBRIIBE

Transaction details

On 15 June 2010, Jingli Beiya (Beijing) Education Consulting
Limited Company (“Jingli Beiya”), a wholly-own subsidiary of
the Company and Beijing Yasi School entered into the Exclusive
Technical Consultation and Management Service Agreement
pursuant to which Jingli Beiya agreed to provide, on an exclusive
basis, technical consultation and management services to
Beijing Yasi School for a monthly fee of RMB100,000 subject
to adjustment as determined by Jingli Beiya. The term of this
agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and will expire on 30
June 2013 after a supplemental agreement was entered into on
29 March 2011.

On 15 June 2010, Jingli Beiya and Beijing Yasi School entered
into the Software License Agreement pursuant to which Jingli
Beiya agreed to grant to Beijing Yasi School a non-exclusive,
non-assignable and non-transferrable right to use Modern C
education software in China for a monthly license fee calculated
at 5% of the monthly revenue (after tax) of Beijing Yasi School.
The term of this agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and
will expire on 30 June 2013 after a supplemental agreement was
entered into on 29 March 2011.

The Directors estimate that the annual transaction amounts for
the transactions under the Exclusive Technical Consultation,
Management Service Agreement and the Software License
Agreement for the three years ending 30 June 2013 will not
exceed the annual caps of HK$1,881,000, HK$1,983,000 and
HK$2,144,000, respectively.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the actual transaction
amounts for the transactions under the Exclusive Technical
Consultation, Management Service Agreement and the Software
License Agreement was approximately HK$1,878,000.

RB5HE

R2010F6 158 - AR a2 E K B A 7
RO QLR R EBRER AT (R
JbHE]) B R BB L B R BT AN
ERRBHZ B RO EREREBER
BEEMI R R EREHZINHANE LR
% A5 AR100,0007T (TR 1L
BORE M AE) o b AF B R2010F1 A
18 AR &RR2011F3 298 T L @ hzig
720136 8308 & °

201056 A158 « R AL FE B R B2
I B AT AR o Rt - AR E
MIRERERELIIEBR  TAIHERT
A 8 A F - LA R B{E FAModern CEUE X
H BRAFTUEDRIEAERERNE AR
A (BRBLE) 5% E o i 3k 69 F HI 2010
F1A18 B R R2011FE3 298 T L/ 7
ek & 120136 A30H &M °

EFRHBEREMENR BEREHE
BRI HEIE TR 2R B E20135F6 A30
HE=BAFENEXZSEBEIRTHA
F 5 FPR1,881,000/% 7T * 1,983,000/ 7T &
2,144,000 Tt °

HZE2011F6 A308 I FE » BRETEAN
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Connection of the parties

Ms. Huang Hui, a director of Jingli Beiya, and the sister-in-law
of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, owns 65% equity interest in Beijing
Jingli Siya Education Consulting Limited Company that holds
100% founding interest in Beijing Yasi School and accordingly
Beijing Yasi School is a connected person of the Company and
services provided under the Exclusive Technical Consultation
and Management Service Agreement and the Software License
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

We have applied to the Stock Exchange, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, a waiver to the Company under Rule
14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Rule 14A.47 of the
Listing Rules (with regard to each of the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs (B)(i)-(iiij and (C) above) and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rules
14A.48 to 14A.54 of the Listing Rules (with regard to each of
the continuing connected transactions in paragraph (A) above),
including the proposed annual caps set out above, as and when
necessary.

Annual Review

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(0

(i

)

58

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the agreements governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.

Modern Education Group Limited BER¥E5$£BERA T
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, was engaged
to report on the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and reported their findings to the Board that the
transactions:

()  have been approved by the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group for provision of goods or services;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed above.
OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid connected transactions, the related-
party transactions set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements also include transactions which did not constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of other related-party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2011, which did not constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions on terms
equivalent to the required standard of the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries with the Directors, the Company
confirmed that each of the Directors has complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding securities transactions
by the Directors commencing from the Listing Date to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. As the Company had not been listed on the
Stock Exchange during the year under review, the CG Code was not
applicable to the Company. The Company has been in compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code since the Listing Date.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules since
the Listing Date and as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report.

B0 Modern Education Group Limited KR #E%£BHR A8
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the CG Code for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls. The Audit Committee is composed of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Ms. Chan Mei Bo, Mabel, Mr. Yu
Cheeric James and Mr. Choi Kin Cheong. The Audit Committee
meeting was held on 21 September 2011 to review the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 30 June 2011.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the Company’s auditor for the year ended
30 June 2011. A resolution for the reappointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

NG Kam Lun, Eric
Chairman
Hong Kong

29 September 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that good corporate governance can create
values for the shareholders of the Company. The Board is committed
to keeping the standards of corporate governance within the
Company and to ensuring that the Company conducts its business
in an honest and responsible manner. As the shares of the Company
were not listed on the Stock Exchange during the year under review,
the CG Code was not applicable to the Company for the year. As from
the Listing Date, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions on
terms equivalent to the required standard of the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries with the Directors, the Company
confirmed that each of the Directors has complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding securities transactions
by the Directors since the listing of the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised four
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Board members are as follows:
Executive Directors:
Ng Kam Lun, Eric (Chairman of the Board)
Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine
(Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary)
Ng Norman (Chief Financial Officer)
Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Chief Operating Officer)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel

Yu Cheeric James (alias Yu Cheeric)
Choi Kin Cheong

b2 Modern Education Group Limited KR #S%£BHR A8
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board has established Board committees and
has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference. All Directors have carried
out their duties in good faith and in compliance with the standards of
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed.

Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a Nomination Committee, and the
selection and approval of new directors is undertaken by the Board.
When there is a nomination to directorship, the Board will assess
the suitability of the nominee and decide whether to accept the
nomination.
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The Board adopted a “Procedure and Criteria for Nomination of
Directors”, the details of which are set out below:

1. When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Board evaluates
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board,
and identifies any special requirements for the vacancy (e.g.
independence status in the case of an Independent Non-
Executive Director).

2. Prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for the
particular vacancy.

3. ldentify a list of candidates through personal contacts/
recommendations by Board members, senior management,
business partners or investors.

4. Arrange interview(s) with each candidate for the Board to
evaluate whether he/she meets the established written criteria for
nomination of directors. One or more members of the Board will
attend the interview.

5. Conduct verification on information provided by the candidate.

6. Convene a Board meeting to discuss and vote on which
candidate to nominate or appoint to the Board.

Criteria for Nomination of Directors
1. Common Criteria Applicable to All Directors
(@ Character and integrity
(b) The willingness to assume broad fiduciary responsibility
(c) Present needs of the Board for particular experience or
expertise and whether the candidate would satisfy those
needs
(d) Relevant experience, including experience at the strategy/
policy setting level, high level managerial experience in a

complex organization, industry experience and familiarity
with the services and processes used by the Company
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(e) Significant business or public experience relevant and
beneficial to the Board and the Company

() Breadth of knowledge about issues affecting the Company

(g0 Ability to objectively analyse complex business problems
and exercise sound business judgment

(h)  Ability and willingness to contribute special competencies to
Board activities

(i)  Fit with the Company’s culture
2. Criteria Applicable to Independent Non-Executive Directors

(@ Wilingness and ability to make a sufficient time commitment
to the affairs of the Company in order to effectively perform
the duties of a director, including attendance at and active
participation in Board and committee meetings

(b) Accomplishments of the candidate in his/her field
(c) Outstanding professional and personal reputation

(d) The candidate’s ability to meet the independence criteria for
directors established in the Listing Rules

Appointment and re-election of directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.

Each of our Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
11 June 2011 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company. Each letter of appointment
is for an initial term of three years commencing on 4 July 2011 and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Those appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the Articles of Associations. None
of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which does not expire or is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any new
director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after the appointment, and at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring director is eligible for re-election at
that general meeting.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular Board meetings
should be held in each year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of majority of directors, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication.

As the shares of the Company were listed on 4 July 2011, the Code
provision mentioned above was not applicable to the Company
during the year under review. After listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The senior management including the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer attend all regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company. The Company Secretary is responsible
to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for Directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

TERMS OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS

Since the listing date on 4 July 2011, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, who provides
leadership for the Board and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that all major
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. He is also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.

The Chief Executive Officer is Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine, who is
responsible for the overall management and operations of the Group.
She is also responsible for running the Company’s businesses and
implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the Chairman co-ordinates with the senior
management to provide adequate, complete and reliable information
to all Directors for consideration and review.

SUBORDINATE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

e Audit Committee

° Remuneration Committee

Each committee may decide upon all matters within its terms of
reference and authority.

A. Audit committee
The Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011. At the
date of the annual report, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The composition of the Audit Committee
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel (Chairman of the Audit Committee)

Yu Cheeric James
Choi Kin Cheong
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Roles and functions

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist our
Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems of our Group, overseeing the audit process
and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
our Board.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 June 2011
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Minutes of meetings

The Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011 and hence
there was no meeting of the Audit Committee during the year
ended 30 June 2011.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 4 July 2011.
At the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
is comprised an Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee

Yu Cheeric James (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Chan Mei Bo, Mabel

Choi Kin Cheong

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
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Roles and functions

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on our policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of our Directors and senior management;
(iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and advising the
Board about the grant of share options to Directors and senior
management pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets at least once a
year for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determining the annual remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management and other related matters.

Minutes of meetings
The Remuneration Committee was established on 4 July 2011

and hence there was no meeting of the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2011.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the

financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2011.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and

understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-

sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management has provided such explanation and

information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to carry

out an informed assessment of the financial information and position

of the Company put to the Board for approval.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 73 to 74 of this report.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, up to the date of this report is set out as
follows:

b1 1% By Bl
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Fee paid/payable
for services

rendered

Bt e ft

FriR t e BR %5 &

HK$'000

FET

Audit Services EZIRE 1,150

As reporting accountants for the Company’s initial RARBHRAFRBEET

public offering FR¥RE ETAD 3,681

Total CE 4,831
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT MERES IR R W B BT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the internal control
system. Relevant procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposal; for controlling excessive
capital expenditure; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for the reliability of financial information used in the operations or for
publication. Qualified management personnel of the Company will
maintain and monitor the internal control system on a going concern
basis.

The Board has reviewed the internal control system of the Group,
which covers financial, operational, compliance procedural and
risk management functions and concluded that the internal control
systems are effective and efficient.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the Non-Competing
Covenantors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is liable to secure shareholders’ interests. The Company
maintains contact with its shareholders through annual general
meetings or other general meetings, and encourages shareholders to
attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in
the notice of general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed with the notice.
shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be present at the
meeting should fill out the form and return the same to the share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint a
representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel to report
the performance of the Company to its shareholders and investors.
Annual reports, accounts and interim reports containing full details
of the Company’s activities will be despatched to shareholders and
investors. Such reports and other announcements of the Company
can be accessed on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s own website. The Company also communicates and
discloses its latest business development plan via road shows,
seminars with institutional investors and analysts, and telephone
conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures are made to shareholders and
investors, and to ensure the same information is made available to the
public at the same time, price sensitive information will be released
in the form of official announcements in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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u BEY « BERSSEENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e OItte EBLIEBE8SE 35/F One Pacific Place
o ANOEH 35128 88 Queensway
IE %’J Hong Kong
&
TO THE MEMBERS OF MODERN EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED BERHAEEEERAT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REESHSTMK 7.2 HRRA)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Modern
Education Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 148,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2011,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 September 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Mmool

For the year ended 30 June 2011

HE2011F6H30R IEFE
2011 2010
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt F#TT FET
Revenue WA 8 268,614 353,213
Other income and expenses E AU A K 2 9 4,473 79
Staff costs B TR 11 (54,717) (58,361)
Tutor contractor fee BEIABE 11 (77,995) (122,225)
Operating lease payments KEHENR 11 (47,198) (51,270)
Marketing expenses MISHERS (14,124) (20,597)
Printing costs ENmI 2 A (394) (583)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE R 5 (9,454) (9,443)
Other operating expenses HE g (32,135) (38,762)
Listing expenses FHHAX (10,408) (3,292)
Finance costs MBER 10 (556) (224)
Profit before taxation B 75 B A 11 26,106 48,535
Taxation BiIE 13 (5,596) (8,477)
Profit for the year FEE 20,510 40,058
Other comprehensive income = R TI N
Exchange differences arising BREREEBREELD
on translation of bE 3 = &8
the PRC operation 152 12
Total comprehensive income FEE2HERARE
for the year 20,662 40,070
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ALTEMERER:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIEZ RSN 20,538 40,076
Non-controlling interests JEIE R AE (28) (18)
20,510 40,058
Total comprehensive income LWTATEMEZEBALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NI E RSN 20,690 40,088
Non-controlling interests IEERE R (28) (18)
20,662 40,070
Earnings per share — basic (HK cents) FRAEF —ER GEML) 14 7.23 15.42
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At 30 June 2011

7420114E6 A30H
2011 2010
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF FHEITT FET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% W E K 16 21,697 29,503
Intangible assets mEE 17 4,837 -
Amount due from a related party FEU— 2B A TR 19 - 16,874
Deferred tax assets EEHIREE 25 973 102
27,507 46,479
Current assets MENE E
Trade and other receivables B 5 I Ho At JE W FRIR 18 51,889 23,925
Amounts due from related parties JFE UL 88 A 7108 19 - 3,458
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 26 3,530 -
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFERITER 20 1,037 1,037
Bank balances and cash WITHEHR LR 20 14,499 21,922
70,955 50,342
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables A FE T 5RI8 21 21,386 13,438
Deferred income EIEY A 9,968 5,404
Tax payable FER R IR 7,615 10,457
Amounts due to related parties JEH R A T FR08 22 3,600 5,024
Obligations under finance leases B & B A 23 - 1,000
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EA{ER 24 49,591 -
92,160 35,323
Net current (liabilities) assets e (BE)EEFE (21,205) 15,019
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAE 6,302 61,498
Non-current liabilities ERENEE
Obligations under finance leases B & B A 23 - 1,114
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBAE 25 974 258
Provision for long service payments RHRS 2B 27 1,884 1,703
2,858 3,075
Net assets BEFE 3,444 58,423
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At 30 June 2011

72011466 A30H
2011 2010
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHEIT FET
Capital and reserves BER N
Share capital f& 7 28 28,400 109
Reserves (G (26,510) 58,314
Equity attributable to owners of RRFHEB AR
the Company 1,890 58,423
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M = 1,554 -
Total equity AR 3,444 58,423
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 148 were BN FT5E EF148E MR G B ¥R B 5722011

approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 29 September
2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Kam Lun, Eric
Director
R

EF

FOROREEESIERTETE YHTIA

ITREEF:

Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine

Director
HEE
o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

moEEEEE

For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6A30R LFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ENTERE ARG
Non-
Share Merger Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B* MR 231 | R G R 4 gl K FRERES #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET FET FET FET
(Note |) (Note i)
(Histi) (Hiiti)
At 1 July 2009 R2009F7A1H 79 - 446 - 41,013 41,538 1,815 43,353
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - 40,076 40,076 (18) 40,058
Exchange differences arising on 2 8 h BI £ 75 F & 4 40

translation of PRC operation ERESE - - - 12 - 12 - 12
Total comprehensive income FEZEKALE

for the year - - - 12 40,076 40,088 (18) 40,070
Effect of acquisition of B 5 2R B B 2 A 89

a subsidiary under common $2 (Mitoe)

control (Note 2(a)) 30 (30) - - 1,797 1,797 (1,797) -
Dividends paid/declared Bt /EEREE - - - - (25,000 (25,000 - (25,000
At 30 June 2010 and R2010E6 A308 &

1 July 2010 2010%7A1H 109 (30) 446 12 57,886 58,423 - 58,423
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - 20,538 20,538 (28) 20,510
Exchange differences arising on 2 8  BI £ 75 & 4 40

translation of PRC operation ERESE - - - 152 - 152 - 152
Total comprehensive income FEZEKALE

for the year - - - 152 20,538 20,690 (28) 20,662
Acquisition of subsidiaries G151 - - - - - - 1,795 1,795
Effect of share swap pursuant  BIEEBEE QMK G

to Group Reorganisation BEYE (Wizop)

(Note 2(b)) 28,291 (28,291) - - - - - -
Dividends paid/declared Bft/BERRS - - - - (77,229) (77,229) - (77,223
Dividends paid to non- RBRRNEERREE

controlling shareholders of R RS

subsidiaries - - - - - - (213) (213)
At 30 June 2011 201146 A30H 28,400 (28,321) 446 164 1,201 1,890 1,554 3,444
Notes: Bat

(i) The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network”) and
the Company issued in exchange for the entire share capital of Express
Education Limited (“Express Education”) and Sino Network pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation (as defined in Note 2), respectively.

(i) The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from transfers
of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of amount due to a
shareholder in prior periods.
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) AP IESINO Network Group Limited ([Sino
Network | ) B AR AR M RHDIBIEEEEH (&
BBt 5E2) 5t 9 Bl 3 B Express Education Limited
([Express Education |) K& Sino Network#) % #5 &
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HmolEliaf

For the year ended 30 June 2011

HE2011F6H30R IEFE
2011 2010
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt i FHEIT FET
Operating activities L EE
Profit before taxation B 5 A& A 26,106 48,535
Adjustments for: FATIHEEELR AR
Interest income FEWA (1) @)
Interest expense FERZ 556 224
(Gain) loss on disposal/written off of & MEE BB &
property, plant and equipment mEr () Eia (2,439) 895
Change in fair value of derivative PTESBIAN
financial instruments NFEEE (222) -
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREETE
equipment 9,355 9,443
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EE 99 -
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE - 159
Provision for long service payments RHRG 2B E 181 637
Operating cash flows before movements %% 38 & 4 & B B HY 48 &
in working capital RERE 33,635 59,891
(Increase) decrease in trade and other 25 Kk E M EWFRIE
receivables (32 hn) R (23,310) 818
Increase (decrease) in other payables H B RIEE N O ) 7,672 (734)
Increase (decrease) in deferred income  EEUW AIE AN (i 4>) 4,320 (4,730)
Cash from operations LEELNES 22,317 55,245
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BREEFEH (9,330) (14,872)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPRREMEREH (168) -
Net cash from operating activities KRB FISIR S F5 12,819 40,373
Investing activities 5B ES
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HEX
plant and equipment HRAEPTIS A 5,138 508
Repayment from related parties, net BB AT EFFRE 3,238 9,599
Interest received 2B 1 2
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME - KER&E
equipment (3,724) (15,168)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yo B B B8 22 7] 30 (2,937) -
Net cash from (used in) investing BEEEE (FTR) A
activities ReF5R 1,716 (5,059)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

B ZE2011F6H30H IEFE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EIT FET
Financing activities BhEEE
New bank and other borrowings FSIRTTREMEE
raised 52,000
Dividends paid ERRE (60,349) (21,000)
Repayment to related parties, net BEREALTHRIBFE (4,785) (327)
Expenses on issue of new shares BTN A X (3,428) (981)
Repayment of bank and other BERITEREMEE
borrowings (2,619) -
Repayment of obligations under BEEREMRE=RE
finance leases (2,114) (1,236)
Interest paid BAHFLE (450) (224)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 0 Bt 8 2 R E) FE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries BRSO A5 AR 2, (213) -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEB T AMIR 2T (21,958) (23,768)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekB2EEY OFD)
cash equivalents N FER (7,423) 11,546
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNREeRREEEY
the beginning of the year 21,922 10,376
Cash and cash equivalents FHRONRERREEEBY
at the end of the year, represented by RIaRITA R IR E
bank balances and cash 14,499 21,922
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26
January 2011 and registered as an exempted company under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange since 4 July
2011. Prior to the completion of public offering on 4 July 2011,
its immediate parent is Speedy Harvest, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, and its ultimate controlling
shareholder is Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
private tutoring and educational services. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman lIslands and Suite 2701, 27/F, Tower 2, Nina Tower,
8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) have given consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$21,205,000 as at 30 June 2011. Taking into account of the
net proceeds of approximately HK$130 million from its public
offering on 4 July 2011, the Directors are confident that the
Group will be able to meet its financial obligations when they fall
due in the foreseeable future and be able to operate on a going
concern basis. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

—REH

RRBIR2011F1 A26 A S B B Ak
VUUWRERESHERREELAEREDR
Al e AR B2011F7 A4 A RN EE R AT ER
LW R20MME7TA4R TR AR SR &
BEESQAA—MRABE LS MK
#) X A]Speedy Harvest * i1 H & 4845 % i% 5
BRBMIE-

RAal/—HEEERAR  MEMNS A A
FERFRELABERBERE - ARQF]
ZEMpERREFESEMERMIED AR
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman lslands &2 & & 37 52 55
15 E B8R I/ B35 E 22782701 = »

RAEMBRRARNRBANINGEEEET (B
TTI)PE

REBERSEEMR

RRBEGAEMBRERE ARRES ([E
E])EERN2011F6A0BEE BB FER
H 8 & &R 1 4921,205,000/8 T 1B 5
NEZRAEERENRBE MR  KET R
201167 A4B ERRBEMSHRIBFEL
130,000,000/ 7T EE R EAEE G I E
MERA R REIBN T AT WA &L
NHEBEEEEEE - Bt REMBRE
DR ECEEERR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6A30H L FE
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION

82

(Continued)

In preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company on the

Stock Exchange, the Company underwent a group reorganisation

(the “Group Reorganisation”) which includes the following steps:

(@)

Modern Education Group Limited BR#E%£B5R A8

Before 7 May 2010, Sino Network was a holding company
of the following wholly owned subsidiaries, including Amber
Well Limited, Business Idol Limited, Beijing Strength Limited,
Intelligent Education Limited, Modern Beiya (Hong Kong)
Limited, Modern Education (Hong Kong) Limited, Sky Link
Management Limited, Wise Action Limited and & /b
() #% AL MAR AT, Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Ms. Yiu
Wai Yee, Catherine (“Ms. Yiu”), Mr. Ng Norman, Mr. Lee Wai
Lok, Ignatious (“Mr. Lee”), Mr. Ng Kam Wing, Ms. Lau Yue
Lan and Ms. Ng Choi Fong each owned 58.02%, 2.08%,
22.28%, 11.37%, 4.25%, 1.00% and 1.00% equity interest
in Sino Network, respectively. On 7 May 2010, Sino Network
acquired the 65% equity interest in Express Education from
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and 35% equity interest in Express
Education from Mr. Lee by issuing and allotting 2,588 shares
of US$1 each to Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and 1,395 shares of
US$1 each to Mr. Lee, respectively (“Share Transfer”). Sino
Network and Express Education are under the common
control of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric before and after the Share
Transfer and that control is not transitory.

Pursuant to a share swap agreement dated 7 June 2011,
the Company acquired the entire share capital of Sino
Network by swapping 283,999,999 shares of HKS$0.1
each to the then existing shareholders of Sino Network.
Thereafter, the Company became the holding company of
the Group since 7 June 2011.

2.

RUEBERSFESEMR (&)

REBARRBRMOBRZPT ET AR AL
ETEESE (REEA])  EREHEAT

(@)

7201055 A7H Z Al * Sino Network 4
LT2EWBARIMZERAR  BREE
ZABR A 7] Business Idol Limited~ ;X /1
ERAT - BRFTBEHEBRAA]
BRI (BB)ERAR-BERHE
(BB)ERAF - R TEEARAA

BEBEBRAAIERR ALK (ER)HE
FBABRAR - RiBMALE KEEL
T ([#hzzt])  REWzE FREEE
E(IFEE]) RBREE BLBL
TR RFF L5 RHFE Sino Network
#958.02% * 2.08% * 22.28% * 11.37% *
4.25% ~ 1.00% }&1.00% % # - 7220104
5A7H ' Sino Networki® i3 7 Bl [F] = §8
fm o M F e A 39T R B 352,588/ &
REEBE1IZETHRG X1,395 TR E
B1IETTHRG (TRMNEZE]) MR
fi & 4 U B Express Education#65% M
1 N [A) 2= 5t A W B8 Express  Education
B135% % 1 o 74 IR 19 ¥4 3E A 1% - Sino
Network X Express Education 2 % f&
Jo e SRR - T A% A5 w0 FE B R o

RIEBEIAR2011F6 A7 ARG B 8
% KR FEBEASNo Networks B )
fi% 28 3 #2283,999,999/% & I T 1H0.1/8
TCH D W B Sino Network ) 2 2 #%
R Lb1& - AR E B2011F6A7THEMX
BAEERZERAG -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION
(Continued)

The Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation continued
to be controlled by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for
each of the two years ended 30 June 2011 have been prepared,
as if the group structure upon the completion of the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout each of the
two years ended 30 June 2011 (other than the acquisition
of Able Investment Development Limited (“Able Investment”),
Bachelor Education Centre Limited (‘Bachelor Education”) and
Modern English Group Limited), or since the respective dates of
incorporation/establishment of the entities now comprising the
Group where this is a shorter period. The consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2010 has been prepared to
present the assets and liabilities of the entities now comprising
the Group which were in existence as at that date.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued
a number of new and revised standards and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs”) which are effective for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on 1 July 2010. For the purpose of
preparing and presenting the consolidated financial statements
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2011, the Group
has adopted all these new and revised HKFRSs consistently
throughout each of the two years ended 30 June 2011.

2.

RUBERSKEEM (&2)

SESABRCAEBERST RIRm T EE
Hl - WERARFECEEE - Bt BEREH
Z2011F6A30B EMEFESFNGRE S
ABA - BenEkExZBERE B
TEREEEAZNHSERENEZE201146
ABOR IEMEFESF (RKEFRIEEHE
BREBRAF ([FIREZE]) BLHEERA
(2T HE]) MBEREBHEREER
RESN R EAEBEETHREERS M
BXAZ/ B BEALAZR (AR & A%) —HTF
£ B 4 & R201096 A30H I 47 & B i 4k
NEUEFRZAPEFENAEBET
REEENEERBRE:.

AT REESTEREMBEREER
(TEEMBEHEEN])

EASHAMASEMZEIN MBI E
B RZRE ([Fe] RSB B BM B REE
Al]) - 20107 A1 BB A EE € 5f
HEES - ARERE5)EH Z£2011F6 730
HIERBEFESFENEEMBEHRE REE
201156 A30R L MEFE&F AEEE
BRI IRAFT B &S5 RISIEFT BB

SRR
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R LFE

3.

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC*) — Int 14
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 20107

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income®

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying asset?

Employee benefits®

Related party disclosures’

Separate financial statements®

Investments in associates and
joint ventures®

Disclosures — Transfer of financial
assets?

Financial instruments?®

Consolidated financial statements?

Joint arrangements?

Disclosure of interests in other
entities?

Fair value measurement?

Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirements’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2071.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2071.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

*

Committee.

Modern Education Group Limited BR#E%£B5R A8

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The management anticipates that the application of these
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, and in accordance
with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include the applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the group entities controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved where the company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired (other than business
combination involving entities under common control) or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

EXEBE

IR E TR R AL FRTR] MR IER] BB S
SRAHAEENGEMHERRILESA

o

N

Ao A mp
e

=

RAEMBRRERELRAEERBIEEE
MEmEERRE AR FEFENET
TRT AR - WIN HFEMBHREBIE L™
RAIRBBARGIRENERFESR

RAMBRRBEARTEHNEEEREN
MHHmE - MARBEEFNEBNMHERLE
BRERAEERBRENE  AIRIEERE
HERBMIESIE-

RAFEDWE OF R ZARZEHEENE
& GHERSI) 3K & BV BT BB & B i M AR R
PRSI EHEEMA S (WER) XA
ERGFEE2HEKRERIIKR-

BRI EHRENERTERIELFHE
IEESFTRRENREEMNKE QBT

E -

SEARBRANMER S B ERZHR
RERB R

M A R A IRE A s AR B RO D
HERIE

REABMARESEEFZRES

B P B8 2 B A 2 W S AR R B BRI Bk
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

B E=2011F6A30H IEFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

86

Business combinations (other than business combinations
involving entities under common control)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation is initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

Modern Education Group Limited BER¥E5$£BEHRALA G
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combinations (other than business combinations
involving entities under common control) (Continued)

Where the consideration the Group transferred in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement”, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

EXEBE (&)

KBS (SREAFAEFAREBHRESOH
BRob) (&)

HAKREREBAHTEZHNRERBIA
REZHFELENEELRE HANERE
BEMRENE AL FEFELRANE
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FHE LB R (B R B Wt (R 1 AR e
- EHREARF EHRMNIE A H
FENEERBERESHEMERELNH
E-FERIBENERREF —FR-

SARAREN R FELSERARL ERERR
FFEHREE MBURRSIAREBNEE D -
D RN IARBLENER RS HH
EME MEBREEXNESAARK-E
DREEXBENIARERBEE LG
A3 e T A BRANTE] XEBES
FHERIZESTH (B AR BBERAAREE]
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4.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are combined using the
existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or as gain
from bargain purchase, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Income from tutoring and educational services is recognised
when the tutoring and educational services are rendered.

Management fee income is recognised when the management
services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the consultancy
services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Deferred income
Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in advance.

Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the tuition
services are rendered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

90

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for supply of services, or
for administrative purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sales, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
life are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one of two
categories, including loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents
derivative financial instruments that are not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from measurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occur after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a receivable
could include the observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

In a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including other payables, amounts due to

related parties and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to fair values at the end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised to profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes income and expense that are
never taxable nor deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using the tax rate that has been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as the lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

EXEEE (&)
S (2)

RENMEGRIER MELNELZR/NE
EHIR B S N RER

MEIGEAMBRRM S BIMEEXEBHHD
BERBE TR RS B 48 R H5E B E
FHRESAEENIRERE (AET) M
HWARMFAXTZZF RN ERETHR

AT BEAXSEHERER -FIELDN
ERER (ME) DREMEEEAPRERL
Mgz Ret (ERLHE) -

HE

EHENGRFTBEAB Y O EEERER LD
BEBRTAEAR BEEEENSEARE
HE-MEHEMBEEN D BAKEHE-

FTEEEBARBEA

EREHERENEEREERRBNAF
Bk (HAREKE) ZRIEEENRORERE
RRAEEEE - HHEANHEEEERSSE
MBARRRINERE HEAE - HEMFIZ
O D BEEEM B E R MR EEARE  fem
FEREFAENENHRBESZEE -MBER
TEZ AT -

REHENKINBEREENFHRAER
FEHERBAX FRI LK EHEN KR
ERRERN NS ITNEEFRRAERR
FERR A TH & 7 ST BV HRL

Annual Report 2011 F 3§ qg




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

Rl 7% ¥ 7% it 5

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

4.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-
managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when the
employees have rendered services entitling them to the benefits.
The amounts recognised are determined at the management’s
best estimate of the future cash outflow for settlement of the
obligations and measured on a discounted basis, if the effect is
material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 4, the management has made judgements
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements. The key assumption
concerning the future, and other key source of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that has a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite
useful lives

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit (‘CGU”)
to which intangible asset has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires to the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 June 2011, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset with indefinite useful life is HK$2,957,000 (2010:
nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 17.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the Group mainly considers the
number of current employees who have achieved the required
number of years of service to the Group, at the end of the
reporting period, who are eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the employee turnover
rate as well as salary growth. Any change in these estimations
will affect the provision to be recognised. Details are disclosed in
Note 27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and accumulated profits.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through arrangement of
borrowings, payment of dividends and new shares issues.
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HZE2011F6H30B IEFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS eMIR
Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables (including cash B BN IR
and cash equivalents) (BERERESEED) 19,550 45,412
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 3,530 -
Rental deposits Heke 24,511 15,493
Financial liabilities THAE
Amortised cost B # A A 62,387 8,858
Obligations under finance leases B T B AE - 2,114
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEARERBE

102 Modern Education Group Limited BRf#E%£BAHRL G

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, other payables, amounts due
from/to related parties and bank and other borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Other than financial assets
described as below, the management considers the credit risk on
remaining financial assets are minimal.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had significant amounts due
from its related parties that were controlled by or under the joint
control of the shareholders of Sino Network (and the Company
after the Group Reorganisation). The management considered
the credit risk for amounts due from related parties as at 30
June 2011 was not significant because the shareholders of Sino
Network (and the Company after the Group Reorganisation) are
of sound financial position. As at 30 June 2011, there were no
amounts due from related parties (2010: HK$20,332,000).

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with good
reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial assets, mainly interest
bearing pledged bank deposits and bank balances at the
prevailing market interest rates. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arise. The management considers the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk is not material. Hence, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

104 Modern Education Group Limited ¥ E5$B5IIRL 0

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which is deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay and includes both interest and principal
cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash outflows on
derivative financial instruments that require gross settlement. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments is
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

7. &MIR (&)

MERREZERRBEE (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEHESREE (&)
More than
1 year
Weighted  On demand but not Total
average or within more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
BREXRY 1EH0E ES: 1)
mEEYFE 154 EFBB5E HAERELE REE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2011 720116 A 30H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FE{T4 % @B (&
Other payables HipfER TR N/A 7ER 9,196 - 9,196 9,196
Amounts due to related parties  FEft 8 A £ 78 N/ARER 3,600 - 3,600 3,600
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (H2i)
(Note |) 5.2% 49,818 - 49,818 49,591
62,614 - 62,614 62,387
Derivative - gross settlement  $T4ATA-REBLEE
Contingent consideration arising %A HE£M K
from business combination RRE (Hr3zi)
(Note i) N/A REH - 2,000 2,000 -
Vendor Put Option (as defined in & J5 55 2i1E
Note 30) (Note ii) (F2 EMi#30)
(Hitii) N/A FER - 17,160 17,160 -
- 19,160 19,160 -
As at 30 June 2010 120106 H30H
Non-derivative financial liabifties FE/TA 2 BB B
Other payables Hfth e 508 N/A T8 A 3,834 - 3,834 3,834
Amounts due to related parties  fE{ BiiE A £ 308 N/A T8 5,024 = 5,024 5,004
Obligations under finance leases & & &E 7.6% 1,132 1,177 2,309 2,114
9,990 1,177 11,167 10,972
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HZE2011F6A30H L F &
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

Bank loan with a repayment on demand clause is included
in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 30 June 2011, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount of such bank loan amounted to HK$9,538,000.
Subsequent to the Listing Date of the Company, such bank loan
together with interest amounting to HK$9,556,000 was fully settled
in July 2011.

The amount included above for contingent consideration arising
from business combination is the maximum amount the Group
could be required to pay under the Acquisition Agreement (as
defined in Note 30), if the conditions set out in the agreement have
been fulfilled (see Note 30). Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that it is unlikely that
any amount will be payable as contingent consideration.

The Vendor Put Option refers to a put option held by the non-
controlling shareholders of Able Investment arising from business
combination and the amount disclosed above is the maximum
amount the Group could be required to pay under the Acquisition
Agreement, if the conditions specified in the agreement have been
fulfiled (see Note 30). Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that it is unlikely that
any amount will be payable under the Vendor Put Option.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets (excluding derivative financial
instruments) and financial liabilities is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated
using the binomial option pricing model.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

e level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e |evel 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Derivative financial instruments are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value and grouped into Level 3.
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HZE2011F6A30H L F &
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

Fair value (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of derivative
financial instruments is as follows:

&MIR (&)
LFEE)

MESBTANE =GR FETEMNEERN
T

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
At beginning of the year REF ) - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 30) BB B~ 7 (2 H72230) 3,308 -
Change in fair value NEENES 222 -
At end of the year NGRS 3,530 -
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WARDEEH

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about the Group’s
business units that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric the chairman of the Group,
in order to allocate resources and to assess performance. Before
the Share Transfer, the chief operating decision maker regularly
reviews the financial statements of entities under his control.
After the Share Transfer, the chief operating decision maker
regularly reviews revenue analysis by services provided, including
secondary tutoring services, secondary day school education,
primary tutoring services, English language training and test
preparation courses, technical consultation, management and
software licensing services and overseas studies consultation
services. Other than the revenue analysis, no operating results
and other discrete financial information is provided to the chief
operating decision maker for the assessment of performance of
the respective services provided. Hence, the Group’s operation is
regarded as a single operating segment.
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. MARSEEHE £Z)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as follows: IR D FEHNAREBWRA DTN T :
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFEIT FET
Secondary tutoring services 2 E RS 209,263 308,492
Secondary day school education FREARRE 33,389 33,130
Primary tutoring services N2 R 7S 5,106 -
English language training and test HRBEIIREARE
preparation courses 17,927 10,712
Technical consultation, management and i fifs5 50 & 12 &
software licensing services AR AR TS 2,221 879
Overseas studies consultation services G INF B TR R AR T 708 -
268,614 353,213
The Group’s assets and revenue derived from activities located REBREBBAINERHE E RIKA S B
outside Hong Kong are less than 1% of the Group’s assets and DRAEEEERBA1% -
revenue, respectively.
No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the Group’s RAESEHRE SREEANEPIEAEERE

total revenue during both years. W AR B10% ©
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9. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

10.

10

9. Hfttlt A KB

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREIT FEL
Interest income FEBA 1 2
Gain (loss) on disposal/written off of P& MEE - BB &
property, plant and equipment R (E1E) 2,439 (895)
Change in fair value of derivative financial ~ $T4£ &Rl T B A FEEH
instruments 222 -
Printing fee income Nl 2 U A 600 -
Others HAth 1,211 972
4,473 79
FINANCE COSTS 10. MERF
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREIT FEr
Interests on bank and other borrowings ERAFANBHREENRITR
wholly repayable within five years E BT E 403 3
Interests on finance leases MmEREFE 153 221
556 224

Modern Education Group Limited KR #E%BHR A8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 0 Wi 75 R 7 bt s
For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. FRIRAIAF

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHEIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRI AN B MR THES -
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) BEEHM (KiE12) 5,111 8,223
Other staff costs H 8 TRA 49,717 51,058
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme H b B TH:RIKEFIET B3k
contributions 1,858 1,954
56,686 61,235
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MEES M EMARE
(Note 12) (Kiat12) (1,969) (2,874)
Staff costs =N DN 54,717 58,361
Auditor’s remuneration 2% SR 5 B 1,043 642
Allowance for doubtful debts IR - 159
Provision for long service payments KRG EE 181 637
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

1. BRIRARH ()

Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on certain percentage of

revenue derived from the secondary tutoring services and English

language training and test preparation courses.

Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease

payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors

which are independent third parties.

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID

TR BB TYIRIEOR 5 B B RS R A
IR AR MAROE T B Lt E -

HENFERELERERHEA (R
F=ZNENHENHKEEENK-

B

12. EXEMEeRAGMEETFHMAL

INDIVIDUALS

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHEITT FHET
Directors’ fees EFx0e - -

Other emoluments to Directors MEEXNHEMBM S
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —BEARFE A2 3,094 5,301
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — — R K42 K 51 21 ¢ 7% 48 48
3,142 5,349
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MEFINEMARE 1,969 2,874
5,111 8,223

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics during

both years.

12
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EEMERARNBEFMAL (&)
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors are as AREERAQNRESE MM EFTHOT
follows:
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEITT FET
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric RiBfmocE
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —EARF & EAL NOERA 660 1,242
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — — 3R K48 | 5T 2] 7 12 12
672 1,254
Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine hEE LT
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —BEARF & EAL NOERE 960 1,371
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — — 3R K48 A 5T 2] 7 12 12
972 1,383
Mr. Ng Norman REBEE
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —BEARF & EAL NOERL 814 1,002
— tutor contractor fee —EHIEABEB 763 976
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — — R K& F 51 &l it 7% 12 12
1,589 2,080
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious TR LEE
— basic salaries, bonus and allowances —BEARFH & B4 NERE 660 1,596
— tutor contractor fee —EhhEe B 1,206 1,898
— retirement benefit scheme contributions  — iR K@ M 5T &t 5% 12 12
1,878 3,506
Total @t 5,111 8,223
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid individuals
(excluding Directors) during the year are as follows:

12.

EXMeRIAEEHFMAL (&)

RER BfusZesHEMAL (TREES)N
B ABENT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Tutor contractor fee EBEAEE 45,673 62,888

Tutor contractor fee was collected by individuals through their
service companies during the year. Their tutor contractor fees
were within the following bands:

BEABRBDENALTRFRNEBERBLD
A EL - REHNZRIABREN T T5IER -

Number of individuals

A®

2011 2010

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 T 27,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,0017% 7L &7,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 7T 29,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7T 2 10,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001/ 7T 211,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7T £ 12,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000 12,000,001 7T 212,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 14,000,001 7T 214,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$18,000,001 to HK$18,500,000 18,000,001 78 7T £ 18,500,000/ 7T - 1
5 5

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office and no
Directors waived any emoluments during both years.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HE2011F6H30R IEFE
13. TAXATION 13. R\
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#T FET
The taxation comprises: HIERIE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EBNEH
Current year KEE 6,901 8,672
Overprovision in prior years BETEBEEG (470) (42)
6,431 8,630
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: B TSR :
Current year NFEE 134 -
Deferred tax (Note 25): BIETRIA (H7at25)
Current year NFEE (969) (153)
Taxation for the year FEMIE 5,596 8,477

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the

estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate

of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries established in the

PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax at 25%.

FRNS VAR EMEFE /AT BRI A

H16.5% M EKETHE -

PRI XA ETBEREDBE G

T REERTH

WAREFEBEAREE - AP B
BB A R ZAIR25% BN B E TS -
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HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)

13. M| (&)

Taxation charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation

as follows:

N T RO B T 32 B RR T AT 4 N Y R 40

T

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREIT FEL
Profit before taxation B A% AT A 26,106 48,535
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of REBMNERRE16.5%EH
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) BB (20104 : 16.5% ) 4,307 8,008
Tax effect of income not taxable HERRIRANTR G 2
for tax purposes (37) -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PP HO G E
for tax purposes 1,755 555
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREE (470) (42)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries R R LRI B AR =R
operating in the PRC TR TR 46 21
Others HAt (5) (65)
Taxation for the year FEHIE 5,596 8,477
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6A30R EFE
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SREH
(i) Earnings per share - financial reporting () SEREBH-MIEHEE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company for the year is based on the

following data:

ARRHAARANFERESRELRA
MIRBIA T BUERTE

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Profit for the year attributable to KRAREAABLFERF
owners of the Company 20,538 40,076
Weighted average number of REREREFNE -
ordinary shares for the purpose of IBAT I AE
basic earnings per share 284,000,000 259,858,752
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)  SRXEAREF| (&Nl) 7.23 15.42
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6A30H IEFE
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. BiREFR ()

118

(ii) Earnings per share - management reporting

Adjusted earnings per share are based on a component
of profit for the year which is used by the Directors for its
financial management purposes. The calculation of these
adjusted basic earnings per share for the year is based on
the following data, which are determined by the Directors:

(i) SBERF-EEBHE

KARSRABNDIRBEEERIEAME
EEMABNFREGENEDFH - ZFL
HEAFEBRERBNIREESE
ERIA MR E

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit for the year attributable to RARIRB ABGEEERET
owners of the Company 20,538 40,076
Adjusted for: B
Listing expenses FHHAX 10,408 3,292
Adjusted profit for the year MERECHBRERBZRMS
attributable to owners of NAEEB AEAEEAE
the Company for the purpose of FZm
adjusted basic earnings per share 30,946 43,368
Weighted average number of RERCHARERZFNME -
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB T
adjusted basic earnings per share 284,000,000 259,858,752
Adjusted basic earnings per share SR AZEF GEM)
(HK cents) 10.90 16.69

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year
is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company and 284,000,000 (2010: weighted average of
259,858,752) shares of the Company in issue during the year
ended 30 June 2011 after taking into account the Share Transfer
and share swap pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as stated
in Note 2.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

Modern Education Group Limited BER¥E5$£BERA G

BREXRBATIBBEARREBSAEBEFE
i A R AR R REE2011F6 8308 I FE
N 2 8 17284,000,0000% (20104 : mnEF 15
259,858,752/% ) I st 8 - Bt K sE2A751)
BEEESHETOROEBERRMDEDS-

RRMEFEALERNRETNEELR
B MW EL S| SAREERF
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. K2

No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
since its date of incorporation. However, Sino Network and
Express Education made the following distributions to their

AATEEFAMAK L B H LRI £ 5 R =k
REIRARE - AT - REBEE AT AT - Sino
Network & Express Education(d) £ & B & I

then shareholders prior to the completion of the Group RIEEATDIR -
Reorganisation.
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Dividends in specie (Note 19) FBBATRRDIREYM S
distributed by: (K1a£19) -
— Sino Network —Sino Network 16,874 -
Cash dividends paid by: FERATRARENRAESKE
— Sino Network —Sino Network 60,349 25,000
— Bachelor Education —Bachelor Education 213 -
77,436 25,000
Dividends attributable to: ATATEHERE:
— Owners of the Company A VNEIEZFS N 77,223 25,000
— Non-controlling interests —FEERR S 213 -
77,436 25,000

The rate of dividends and the number of shares ranking for the
above dividends are not presented as such information is not
meaningful having regard to the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements.

PARA B HmARM S - ARBRE R KA EIR
FRBEEMBRNBBELERTE HLEZT

BREEF -
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HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ WER®RH

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HERE FHRKE WOERG BRI RE it
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST 5%

At 1 July 2009 #2009F7A1H 21,729 5,511 11,750 2,557 8,976 50,523
Additions wE 11,087 1,763 1,743 475 1,740 16,808
Disposals/written off HE /W (8,155) (334) (903) - (2,887) (7,.279)
At 30 June 2010 #201046 4308 29,661 6,940 12,590 3,032 7,829 60,052
Additions NE 1,384 893 1,251 196 - 3,724

Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AR (ZH7i230)

(see Note 30) 341 129 54 - - 524
Disposals HE - 17) (655) - (7,588) (8,260)
At 30 June 2011 %201146A30H 31,386 7,945 13,240 3,228 241 56,040
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 July 2009 200947 A1H 10,781 3,196 6,754 943 5,308 26,982
Provided for the year FEAEE 4,458 922 1,857 523 1,683 9,443
Eliminated on disposals/ R/

written off (2,492 (234) (647) - (2,503) (5,876)
At 30 June 2010 #2010F6A30H 12,747 3,884 7,964 1,466 4,488 30,549
Provided for the year FEAE 5,169 1,170 1,856 555 605 9,355
Eliminated on disposals & B 8K - 17 (599) - (4,945) (5,561)
At 30 June 2011 #201146 4308 17,916 5,087 9,221 2,021 148 34,343
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 30 June 2011 #201146 4308 13,470 2,908 4,019 1,207 93 21,697
At 30 June 2010 #201046 4308 16,914 3,056 4,626 1,566 3,341 29,503

The carrying value of motor vehicles includes an amount of nil

NENEEEEERREEAETEEART

(2010: HK$2,684,000) in respect of assets under finance leases. (20104 : 2,684,000/ 7T ) ©

1200 Modern Education Group Limited ¥ E5$B5IIRL 0




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 0 Wi 75 R 7 bt s
For the year ended 30 June 2011
HZE2011F6A30R EFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the

16. ME -BWERRM (Z)

W% BE KRB A BN ERETE
SRR AT A AR T LAY - T M I E R

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum: NN
Leasehold improvements 20% HERE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% BMEEE 20%
Office equipment 20% PAERME 20%
Computer equipment 20% BB 20%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. | EE
Franchise
Trademark rights Total
[iF: YFETiE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
COST 5%
At 1 July 2010 MR2010F7H1H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W g B B8~ |) (2 M at30)

(see Note 30) 2,957 1,979 4,936
At 30 June 2011 201146 A30H 2,957 1,979 4,936
AMORTISATION #an
At 1 July 2010 20107 A1H - - -
Provided for the year FHEE - 99 99
At 30 June 2011 720116 A30H - 99 99
CARRYING VALUES IRmEE
At 30 June 2011 1201196 A30H 2,957 1,880 4,837
At 30 June 2010 720106 H30H - - -
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HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. |BLEE (&)

122 Modern Education Group Limited R E$B5IIRL 0

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under the
relief from royalty method by a firm of professional valuers, Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”).

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name “BACHELOR
EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED” under contractual franchise
agreements in the business of primary tutoring services. The
amortisation period of franchise rights is 10 years.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the management
determines that there is no impairment of any of its CGU in the
business of primary tutoring services containing trademark.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. It is expected to generate cash
flow for indefinite period. To calculate this, cash flow projection
is based on five-year period financial budgets approved by the
management using a discount rate of 17.3% and the estimated
growth rate of 3% to 16%. The cash flow projection beyond the
five-year period is extrapolated using a steady 2% to 3% growth
rate.

AEBEMHMHZR#EIBACHELOR
EDUCATION CENTER LIMITED | {2358 :& 5
KR WA EREBERAIEAF-
Uk EE B H3 (BP20109F12A318) - iz
MAFEBEEEGBER BB EETH
BEREARAG (B ) XAENSEE
SE U AEVEH FT A o

BROEERE N EHEARBEBNE L
5 5 # 3% (£ B [BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTER LIMITED | % & H)#EF « 3Ty
SHERB10%F -

REZE2011F6H0B I FE EEERT
NEFHEREER (BERE) NTAREE
A BN IR R E -

B R R E S R IIREREEEE -8
HESNERRAFNELRSNE - SLUtFE
mE RERERANERBEEBIEL
T FHI TR B AE A REIR R17.3%A R fh &t
BRERINE16%H - AFHRRZBASAR
EIERATIE 2% E3%NIRE L K T ETH

o
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HZE2011F6A30R EFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. WA RHEMEWRE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

FREIT FET

Accrued revenue and trade receivables JEETUR A E 5 e W BR X 1,091 879
Rental deposits Heks 24,511 15,493
Other deposits Hiviz & 869 1,820
Prepayments SN 22,495 4,491
Other receivables H & W RE 2,923 2,454

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts JB - RER R - (1,212)
51,889 23,925

The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and trade

receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

AT BIREHREHIRER B M2 &

WA K E 5 MR 2 BR e 9 A -

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAEIT FET

Accrued revenue not yet billed 8 AR WER 2 e FTH A 780 879
Trade receivables: 2 5 W IR -

0 - 30 days 0&30H 278 -

31 - 60 days 31£260H 17 -

61 — 90 days 61290H 6 -

Over 91 days BB H 10 -

1,091 879

The accrued revenue and trade receivables arose from the
provision of technical consultation, management and software
licensing services to a related company in which Ms. Huang Hui
controls and from the franchising of primary tutoring service to
franchisees. The accrued revenue is not yet due as it is billed
semi-annually in arrears. The credit periods are ranged from 30
days to 90 days. There is no credit period granted for tuition fees
as they are normally received in advance.

FERTWMARE SEBEEFRER —K@AER
AR R BRMTE R B 1R R A RS
ZArHEZLLES WARERMBLE
ERTRE ) PHERE - AREFBAE
FERERKE - A KRB B -EEBANT
0EENHzH -ANAEERZE  Hit
WEEEER-
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HE2011F6A30H L FE
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. BHRHEMBUHRIE (£Z)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREBEENEESNOT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH 1,212 1,053
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE - 159
Amounts written off as uncollectible {EATRE B FRIBMISE A £ 58 (1,212) -
At end of the year REL - 1,212
At 30 June 2010, the allowance for doubtful debts represented MR2010%6 A308 » RIRE 5 R N B &K
individually impaired other receivables which had been placed BB EB SN E A (E R 2 BB B b FE Uk 5k
under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group did T8« NEB W E G X S50 A TG -
not hold any collateral over those balances.
19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 19. ERREANLTRIE
Particulars of the amounts due from related parties are disclosed FEUNREE AT NIEHESIRELNT
as follows:
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz FET FET
Modern Education (China) Limited ~ BRAHE (&) BRAF
(“Modern (China)’) (R (RE)]) - 2,035
Modern Dadi Overseas Edunet BRARGINAZBER DA
Limited - 3
IR R N BHAEERNERAR b RmRR N BB B
(“Beijing Siya”) BRAF ([HEREIE]D) - 603
Ms. Huang Hui mEL L (i) - 16,874
Mr. Ng Kam Wing RIBEEE - 22
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric RiB@ILE - 45
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious TEEST A - 9
Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine EHEL T - 2
Mr. Liu Hongbo SR A - 739
- 20,332
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLERM 5 DA
Current assets mEEE - 3,458
Non-current assets ERBEE - 16,874
- 20,332
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HZE2011F6A30R EFE

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 10. BEWRAEALTRE (£)

Maximum amounts outstanding during the year are as follows: NEAMKAEENZSESENT
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 TF#ET FET
Modern (China) WA (FRED 2,035 2,035
Modern Dadi Overseas Edunet MR R GINAEFR A A
Limited 3 3
Beijing Siya RSB 1,191 603
Ms. Huang Hui F J°um (i) 16,874 16,874
Mr. Ng Kam Wing REBEEFKE 22 22
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric REFfmAEE 45 6,244
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious TEGEE 9 20
Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine hEE LT 2 6,478
Mr. Liu Hongbo I S A 739 739
Notes: Vg

0

(i)

As at 30 June 2010, the advance to Ms. Huang Hui was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and with no fixed repayment term.
The Group did not expect it to be settled within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and was therefore classified as non-
current.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, prior to the completion of
the Group Reorganisation, Sino Network distributed the advance
to Ms. Huang Hui of approximately HK$16,874,000 to the then
shareholders of Sino Network, except Primo Result, by way of
dividend in specie.

The amounts (other than the amount stated in Note (i) above) were
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
relationships with the Group of each related party are disclosed in
Note 34(a).

(i)

201056 A30H ' M&E E 2 T B A # K
REER 22 REEFEERSA- $‘§@I
TIERZRIE B S AR =
NENEE .lﬁt%ﬂz/\*ﬁﬁﬁ#/m@

REE2011F6A30H EFE - TEEER
SERCAT * Sino Network LA B ¥1A% 8.6 77 = i )
BHETIRHE 2 #916,874,0007 TLH A
Sino NetworkZ B HIIR R S RAEE - HEREE R
4o

%R (R E XM EOPAE BN BEE
M 2ENENBRBEE SHEALH
RS B 1) B AR A B TEB4(a) 1 B o
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HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

20.

21.

22,
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH, PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carried interest at market rates which ranged from
0.001% to 0.5% (2010: 0.001% to 0.36%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure short term banking facilities granted to the Group and are

therefore classified as current assets.

OTHER PAYABLES

20. RITEBERA® CEHFRITHER

RITHE IR N F0.001%ZE0.5% (20104 -
0.001%%E0.36% ) BT 5 F F K5 B o

EERIRITERIEER TRITZFERARE
ETAKENEHRTHE ARSI BER

21. HMfEFIRIB

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Other payables H b S 5008 9,196 3,834
Other accruals EMEET & A 5,630 2,464
Accrued tutor contractor fee, JEETEBRARE -
salary and bonus e KL 6,560 7,140
21,386 13,438
AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 22, EftHREALTRE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Directors and non-controlling FIRIWEMESR
shareholders of Able Investment (Note) FEPERR AR R () 3,600 -
Directors and shareholders of the Company 72 &) #) 2 & & i85 - 4,863
Director of a subsidiary —ENBATNES - 161
3,600 5,024
Note: /jﬁif .
Other than the consideration payables of HK$3,000,000 (Note 30), the [ FE <R {&3,000,0005 7T (#17230) 5h » 32 ZF 5018

amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to related parties as at 30 June 2010 were unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

REER RS RAREREEE-

7201056 A30H FERT i@ A - 2 FRIB A EEA

RBRARBREBERER-
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HZE2011F6A30R EFE

23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 23.

At 30 June 2010, the motor vehicles were held under finance

lease with lease term ranging from 2 to 3 years. Interest rate

underlying all obligations under finance leases were fixed at

respective contract dates which range from 4.75% to 14.25%

per annum. During the year ended 30 June 2011, the obligations

were early repaid upon the disposal of the motor vehicles.

Minimum lease payments during the year are as follows:

MRERRE

20106 A30H RIEHEB TRHAEM A
BHHHAESEN T2=3F - A E A ERE
A TR TN T4.75% E14.25% ) F F
EREANBEETE - RNEZE201146H30
BIEFE ZERENDERBRIZTEE -

REARNZEBRENKMT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREIT FET
Amounts payable under finance leases R RLE &/ B R
Within one year —FA - 1,132
More than one year but not more than —FEETBBERF
five years - 1,177
- 2,309
Less: Future finance charges DB RIRENE - (195)
Present value of lease obligations HEAENRE - 2,114

Present values of minimum lease payments during the year are as

REANZEBRENKOREDT

follows:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#TT FET

Amounts payable under finance leases RIFRLEHER E IR
Within one year —F A - 1,000

More than one year but not more than —FUEERNBBRSF
five years - 1,114
- 2,114

Less: Amount due for settlement J8 1218 A RIB B R RRIE
within 12 months - (1,000)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  121# A 1& /& 8 8 58 E - 1,114
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

HZE2011F6 A0 LFE
24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, BITRHEMMERE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Bank loans RITER 9,591 -
Other loan H A & K 40,000 -
49,591 -
Carrying amount repayable: JEEEAREE
Within one year —FRr 40,053 -
Carrying amount of bank loan that AR B REARE—F LR
is repayable more than one year THBMFERERSRENK
but not exceeding two years BEERHRITERNEREE®
from the end of the reporting period but (BIAREEE)
contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 9,538 -
Amount due within one year shown FIARBEER—FRNEIHAFTIE
under current liabilities 49,591 -
Bank loans carried fixed rate interest ranging from 2% to 7.25% RITERILN F2%E7.25% (20104 « )
(2010: nil) per annum and are secured by personal guarantee & T ER R B N B MEEE R IEZE RS
provided by non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment and BN LM RMEANEAEREER-
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.
Other loan carried fixed rate interest of 6% (2010: nil) per annum H i E R I156% (2010F - | ) 19 & F F 7| X
and is secured by personal guarantees provided by Mr. Ng Kam HENARBEREE TEERRE LS
Lun, Eric, Mr. Lee and Mr. Ng Norman. IEEHBEAEREER-
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B Z20115F6 H30H ILFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised

25. {EFEFRIA

AT RRFRERNETEHAEE (RE) &

and movements thereon during the year: HEH:
Depreciation
of property,
Intangible plant and
assets equipment Total
ME - BER
ELEE BRI E et
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2009 200947 A1H - (309) (309)
Credited to profit or loss FAFFAEBD
during the year - 153 153
At 30 June 2010 720106 A30H - (156) (156)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB BT B A R) (2 H17£30)
(see Note 30) (814) - (814)
Credited to profit or loss FAFTAER
during the year 17 952 969
At 30 June 2011 201156 H30H (797) 796 (1)
The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation for financial LT AREERMmS NELERIESH:
reporting purposes:
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TFETT FET
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 973 102
Deferred tax liabilities BEEIBEE G (974) (258)
(1) (156)
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HZE2011F6 A0 LFE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26. FTEEMTRA

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt TFET FET
Call Option R R (i) 2,858 -
Put Option Roh kg (if) 672 -
3,530 -

Notes: Bt :

M

(i)

The Call Option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to purchase the remaining 40%
of the issued share capital of Able Investment from the non-
controlling shareholders. The exercise price of the Call Option is
determined as 40% of the audited net profit after tax (“NPAT”) of
Bachelor Education adjusted by a multiplier (“Multiplier”) set out in
the Acquisition Agreement (as defined in Note 30) of the respective
financial period when the Call Option is exercised.

The Put Option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to sell back to the non-controlling
shareholders 60% issued share capital of Able Investment if the
NPAT of Bachelor Education during the five financial periods
ending 31 August 2015 is less than 60% of the guarantee NPAT
set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The exercise price is the total
consideration for the acquisition of 60% issued share capital of
Able Investment under the Acquisition Agreement plus 60% of the
net asset value of Bachelor Education at the date the Put Option is
exercised.

The fair value of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be
insignificant as at the acquisition date and 30 June 2011 since the
management considers that it is highly unlikely that the specified
level of accumulated NPAT can be achieved by reference to the
latest profit forecast of Bachelor Education.

As at 30 June 2011, the fair value of the Call Option and the Put
Option is estimated by Vigers using the binomial option pricing

model. Key inputs of the valuation are: (i) risk free rate of 1.13%,
(i) volatility of 35%, (i) dividend yield of 0%, and (iv) latest profit
forecast of Bachelor Education.
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0

(i)

(i)

BRYAEBNREHEAHRF RER2015
F12A31AEE - AR RBEF R
BB D EBITI AR 8 T40% R N TT
FENETAERENEETEH S
MU BE % (F & ZM30) REH S &
(TEH ) EREETHR TN EEZGTH AL
(TR BAF]) B940% o

BPAEENRLEEABHRT RER2015
F12A31H I H - MBI EH £2015F8
F318 |- 716 B B HA R R B B 18 48 1) D A
B 175 5 FIT 2 (R BR B0 12 48 71 1960% + BIl /A 3E
7 JG AR R O] A BRI A B BT IR AN I60% ©
TEEARBUEHBZUWEINREEDET
B A H9160% ) AR E - M2 L E R R0h
LT B E EFEM60% ©

RULEE B 81 2201146 A30H B 7 R h Hi ke
MAFEGBHETER NAABEERE
TRABEAE 25 B =M &% F 788 i
ERRFBRRALET R EKTE -

201156 A30H  REHERREHAED
AFEDHEETRAZEAEREEERER
B AEMEZHAZBEA - ()ERRFIE
1.13% : (i) 1835% : ()i B U R0% : K
(V)2 T3 = B & 50 I TR OR)
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27. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 27. REIRFELIT W
HK$'000
TFETT
At 1 July 2009 R2009%7A1H 1,066
Charged to profit or loss during the year FAREZEFR N 637
At 30 June 2010 720106 A30H 1,703
Charged to profit or loss during the year FAREBERP R 181
At 30 June 2011 7201146 A30H 1,884
The provision for long service payments is based on the best REARTE © BHE TR IE R R R & E 5T
estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations B MARRNRIVIERIET SEEED
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the AREEBERBNEEBEAEST
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &&
The movements of share capital of the Company are as follows: RATIHIR ARSI T -
Number
of shares Amount
B # A Eak:]
HK$'000
TETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SFREE. 1B TR T B
Authorised TETE
- on 26 January 2011 — 20111 A26H
(date of incorporation) (sEMpsz B 87) 1,500,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
— issue of shares on 26 January 2011 — 201141 A26H
(date of incorporation) (=R BHR) B 1TRR 1D 1 =
— issue of shares upon the share swap —R2011F6 A7 AR H 18 B8
on 7 June 2011 (Note 2(b)) BTG (B7aE20b)) 283,999,999 28,400
—at 30 June 2011 —1201146H30H 284,000,000 28,400
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. BR& (&)
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The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands on 26 January 2011 with
an authorised share capital of HK$150,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. On 26 January
2011, one subscriber share with the par value of HK$0.1 each
was subscribed by Mapcal Limited which was subsequently
transferred to Speedy Harvest, a company controlled by Mr. Ng
Kam Lun, Eric, on 1 February 2011.

On 7 June 2011, the Company acquired the entire share capital
of Sino Network by swapping 283,999,999 shares of HK$0.1
each to the then existing shareholders of Sino Network pursuant
to a share swap agreement.

On 4 July 2011, 116,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company were issued at HK$1.3 per share by way of public
offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The share capital of the Group at 1 July 2009 represented the
combined share capital of Sino Network and Express Education.

The share capital of the Group at 30 June 2010 represented the
share capital of Sino Network.

RAFR2011F1HA26BEHAEHEF
MR EZERERRAT  EAERAE
150,000,000/% 7T * 9 %41,500,000,000/% &
IR EE0.1E T A E B - 20111 H26
B ' Mapcal Limited? & — I & R E(EO0.1
BRI ARG W HBE2011F2A
1HEE T B R85 Mm % & AT $l 89 Speedy

Harvest °

R2011F6A7H  IRIE— MR HE %
NN T B ASino Network & B () IR 5 9 1%
283,999,999 B Ik E EO. 1B T x5 + Ik
8% Sino Network# 2 3 i 4 -

R2011F7TH4B  ARAIFEBARBEESTR
% R%1.37 J0 8 17116,000,0004% = i &
0BT T B - RAH AR AMRMD R
B AT EIR BT e

AN EER2009F7 A1 H B KR A $ESino
Network } Express Educationf) & 7 o

KEEP2010%6 A30H A % & #5Sino
Network#J JZ 7K
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. FEBRHERTE)

The Share Option Scheme of the Company was adopted
pursuant to a resolution in writing of all shareholders passed
on 11 June 2011. The purposes of the Share Option Scheme
are to attract and retain the best available personnel and to
provide additional incentives or rewards to full time or past-
time employees, Directors (whether executive or non-executive),
consultants, supplier, customer, joint venture partner, business
associates and advisor (professional or otherwise) of the
Company for their contribution to the Company and to promote
our success. The Share Option Scheme became effective on
4 July 2011, subject to earlier termination by the Directors and
approved in advance by the shareholders in a general meeting.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting for a period
commencing from the Effective Date and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on
the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the Adoption
Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate, exceed
40,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (400,000,000 shares) at the Effective Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or Director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

RARRBEE2ERENR2011F6H11HBA
WEERBRAMNERNR 2 BIRERTE -5
RS SRS REBHREEL  RAXK
NAMEBAERES EF(ERATH
FEBIT) A HEDN BR -5EBH
R RER (FEAEM) REEINMER
B UNREHEHARARAENER
IR HE AR A BT o B AR R 5T 21 20114F
TRHARER WA RESTERERFERKRE
R LERAEBRTIRELK L - FBRES
S EEREHEERNABETASRE
¥ETTFAREERREHREER-

RIFIE R RERT B ] 31T 2 AR R D 4B 2R
& H 15 #83840,000,0000% - 2 E AR A 7
B HEHE B %17 A% 2 (400,000,0000% ) 2
10% °

PME + = (8 A B AR 5 B A AT &1 7
BEreu2aE (TeRIERR THAR
TNl ER) ZBRE (BIEETRE
ARSI ORTT 2 BB A ) AT (E T AT 37T
ZBEMEBE LR BBARRERERT
AR Z21% o BBt ERR 2 B — TR HA
RBRAE EEUSARELAE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 20, BBRRiERTE (2)
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules), are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee of the options). In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
(as defined under the Listing Rules) in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing
by a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
The exercise period for the share options granted is determined
by the Directors, which period may commence from the date
of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share options but
shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years from the date
of the conditional adoption of the Share Option Scheme by the
shareholders subject to the provisions for early termination under
the Share Option Scheme.

Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, no options have been granted to eligible participants
under the Share Option Scheme.

RARARER TRARITIERRIKE
BEERZEMBEAL (EER LETHRAD KT
BRERELDSBUINTES (TERE
S RBREARRA B UIENTES) #t
EMIN WMEREERE AR (BFEZA)
T EAMEAA - BT ARBEERRL
BUFPTEFIARFZTEZEMHEAL
(EEREMRA) 2 EMBREBL AR
FIE#ETRMN Z201% B 48 (RERLER
ARBE Ay 2 W B 5 E ) #8715,000,0008
7O AIASEERRAE EBUSIRIRAL#E

RAEARABRIBTZAERER AARE
HMBEHEAIHAEERAERBREZZ
WEREBERBZITEMHESRE &
HIF AR RN ERBRE 2O B HMRS
18 48 5 A0 fa] ZE 0 IR B R 1 B b BB B A =1 8
HHEIREFH0F AR L - WEX B 8118
TZIRFPEIEGEFIRR

BEER

EMBHRELBE MEREEK
#itgma

B2 EER L EMERE-
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30.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Six
Stars Consultants Limited (“Six Stars”), a related company of
the Group, Ms. Yiu, Able Investment and the non-controlling
shareholders of Able Investment, namely, Ms. Poon Wai Sze,
Ms. Mok Sze Wan, Mr. Ng Hoi Tin and Mr. Ng Ping Lun, for
the acquisition of 60% equity interests in Able Investment and
its subsidiary, Bachelor Education, from Six Stars at a cash
consideration of HK$6,000,000 (including HK$3,000,000 which
was settled in March 2011 and HK$3,000,000 which is payable
within 14 days after the approval of financial statements of
Bachelor Education by its board of directors for the financial
period ended 31 August 2011) and a contingent consideration
of HK$2,000,000 (which is adjusted by reference to the financial
results of Bachelor Education for the financial periods ending
31 August 2012 and 31 August 2013). Upon completion of
the acquisition on 31 December 2010, Able Investment was
owned as to 60% by the Group and 40% by non-controlling
shareholders. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, various
call and put options have been granted to the Group and non-
controlling shareholders of Able Investment. The acquisition was
accounted for under the acquisition method. Bachelor Education
is engaged in provision of primary tutoring services in Hong
Kong.

The fair value of the contingent consideration is estimated to be
insignificant because the management considers that it is highly
unlikely that the specified level of NPAT can be achieved for the
two financial periods ending 31 August 2012 and 31 August
2013.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group is granted
a Call Option to acquire additional 40% issued share capital of
Able Investment and a Put Option to sell back 60% of the issued
share capital of Able Investment from/to the non-controlling
shareholders. On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the Call
Option and Put Option is estimated to be HK$1,711,000 and
HK$1,597,000, respectively. On the date of acquisition, those fair
values are estimated by Vigers using the binomial option pricing
model. Key inputs of the valuation are: (i) risk free rate of 1.76%,
(ii) volatility of 40%, (iii) dividend vyield of 0%, and (iv) latest profit
forecast of Bachelor Education. Details of the Call Option and Put
Option are set out in Note 26.

30. WrREMIE 2R

M20106F12H22H AR EFEHAEHH
ERRIANEBRBRAR([NE]) #k&
T FRIEERFIRIRE R IETRARE - BT
FBEBL T BEFHBALT REREERR
1 1 5 A 1A 75 2 LA 3R € X {€6,000,0007% 7T
(453,000,007 7t B F2011F3 AE -
REIHETEETSHAEEE E2011F8A31
HiE RO B HRERBI4RANEER
#93,000,0007% 7T ) & 3k 74 X 2,000,000/
T (g2 EB T HEE E2012F8A31H
N2013F8A31H IEM BUAHIM BT 5 2 4E T
L) WEANRREREWNBATZLH
E60%MER] L EE i ([WHEhRE]) - R
201012 A1 H IS ek 1% - FIERIEE B AR
EEEBO% K BIFFRBREIEFA0% < 1B
Bl EHE B TRELROTHEEETA
EERARIGENIFERIRR -ZKEEFE
TR BUEEETR - BT HERET BN EIR
HNBEERR

ﬁWﬂﬂ‘J“Wﬁ%éﬁtT@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

EBRETKARERE £2012F8A318 &
2013¢8H31E|¢WIE7IB(HJ%F?$£& TRE S
FET Y % KT o

BEKER®E NEEEXREREARIE
TRR AR SR U R AR 1R B B BT IR A MR I
40% LA RERR R ERRRE D
PRI E D EITIRAM60% - IR B 8
REMERABLCAENRTEGH DA
1,711,000 Jt % 1,597,000/ Jt 1 U 3& A
HY - REEERRE SR B D S E T B B
WA —EX T BEA G -HENE
ZHAZIER  ((ERRFE1.76% : (i)ZiE
40% ; (i BWEE0% : R(VVETHEN&

5 FTE R - R B HA R N AR E B R MO RE I K
RHTEE26 °
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. ItEBB AT (£Z)
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In addition, the Group granted a put option to the non-controlling
shareholders (the “Vendor Put Option”) to sell 40% issued share
capital of Able Investment to the Group on 31 December 2015
upon fulfilment of various conditions, including, the accumulated
NPAT of Bachelor Education for the five financial periods ending
31 August 2015 is equal to or above HK$19.3 million. The
exercise price of the Vendor Put Option is determined as 40% of
the audited NPAT for the financial period ending 31 August 2015
adjusted for a Multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The
fair value of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be insignificant
as at the acquisition date and 30 June 2011 since the
management considers that it is highly unlikely that the specified
level of accumulated NPAT can be achieved by reference to the
latest profit forecast of Bachelor Education.

I AN AN 55 B ) SR 4 BR IR SR IR AR H A
([EHREHRE]) - LLR2015F12A31H
BOSEEFERNAEELEMNRIEED S
TIRAH40%  BRAKHBREETHERE
20158 A31 A IF A EH KK B M R5TBR R
1% 4 K #8 25 1£19,300,0008 LS LA F-B
ROLEENITEENEE AR E R ETE
EHE FAEE =2015F8 A31 8 1B Th H R
B AS B A% PR B 18 45 1 B040% © AU B B &
2011F6A30R B A M A FEMA
TREX TEAEBEERAKCLESLH
=R &R F TR A K AT R IE R R AT BB R
KO A 4F IR o

Consideration K{E
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid to a related company, BEMEEQARNENRE

Six Stars 3,000
Consideration payables ERRE (BERENBEEAT ZHRIE)

(included in amounts due to related parties) 3,000
Call Option s IR (1,711)
Put Option Roh ke (1,597)

2,692
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

30. WrRBPRB 2T (&£)

dated Financial Statements

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition RO ERZEEERAR
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BB REE 524
Intangible assets mEEE 4,936
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A W SKIAE 1,074
Amounts due from related parties FE U BB A 58 78
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 63
Current liabilities nEaE
Other payables H b S 508 (170)
Deferred income RIEUA (244)
Tax payable FERTBIIR 1)
Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A TR (659)
Bank borrowing RITIER (210)
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEIETIE B (E (814)
4,487
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEHEE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration RE 2,692
Plus: Non-controlling interests 0 FEPERR 1,795
Less: Net assets acquired JR TR S B E R E (4,487)
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (40% in Able Investment and its
subsidiary, Bachelor Education) recognised at the acquisition
date was measured by reference to the proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets and
amounted to HK$1,795,000.

30. WrREBREB T (&)

kD

U EE B IR MR IR s (RFIREKR
BEREMBARZLIHEMIORER) IS
EREOISEEBE AT A FREEFED
NEEFE KA1,7950008 7T

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEELXHRERHEE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BERReRE (3,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired Frig G RITHEBR KRS 63
(2,937)

31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 30 June 2011, prior to the completion of
the Group Reorganisation, Sino Network distributed the advance
to Ms. Huang Hui of approximately HK$16,874,000 to certain
shareholders of Sino Network by way of dividend in specie (2010:
nil).

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group entered

into finance leases in respect of assets with a total value of
HK$1,640,000 at the inception of the finance leases (2011: nil).
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3. EEFBREXH

REZE2011F6A30B IEFEAN - NEBEER
SEACET * Sino Network LA B ¥ % 2 77 25
=27 R 2 416,874,000/ TR R A
Sino Network 2 & TR R E KA 2 (2010F :
) o

REE2010F6 A30B IEFERN > KEEET
MERE MEENRELEERRIENRAE
41,640,000/ 70 (20114 - &) -
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for the following minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases to independent third parties in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

32. EEHBRIE

RBERKR REABRBENEABLE
=HAENTAREEERE  AEERK
REHSFHMOT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 51,405 42,323
In the second to fifth years FE_FEERF 51,530 31,902
102,935 74,225

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed originally for lease

HRKEREER —E2=2F MRENEE

terms of one to three years. N o
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BF&kiE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FET
Capital expenditure contracted U BERZREDFL
for but not provided in the consolidated BRREGE M BmE TP EEN
financial statements in respect of BEARRAX
the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment - 914
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. The management is of the view
that the following companies and individuals were related
parties that had transactions or balances with the Group

34. HEALRS

(@ MM—BALHEENEELEEEH A
AT HEEMATELT B RELRE
REEBMERTZE  AZFALHR
REZBEMATHAEAL EERE
RBE U TRRIMALTRFAENEE
ETRHRBEHROBEAL:

during the year.

Name of related party

MEALER

Relationship with the Group
HAEEEMEE

bR ARG R M BRI 2R
(“Beijing Yasi School”)
IERTHAGRERFIER ([EREBER])

Beijing Siya
j'lf/ /T}]i /EILE\ ﬂ&

Modern (China)
TR (PE)

Modern Dadi Overseas Edunet Limited

BRAMEINTRER AT

Modern Education and Technology Limited

BRBEMRBERAA

Modern English Limited

BEREZBARAT

Goldstar Enterprises Limited
KEREBRRAT

Head Corporation Limited

BERERAT

In Dell Education Limited
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100% interest held by Beijing Siya

LR B IR A 100%# 51

65% equity interest held by Ms. Huang Hui
BEE LT B65%MRIE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
ok 2 £ 5 H100% A%

51% equity interest held by Modern Education
and Technology Limited
BRYEBBBRER R BIFES1%&E

100% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R tm 55 1B 100% 1

66.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and
33.33% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
R 7t 5% 4 15 5 66.67 %A & 9k 2+ #55 33.33% Ak 1

99.9% equity interest held by In Dell Education Limited
In Dell Education Limited#§ 5 99.9% % #

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee
2k 22 £ 5 B 50% A K F 5 4 R B 50%% 1

28.53% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and 2.08%
equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
R 95 ST A 15 55 28.53% AR #E K ok & + #5H2.08% A% 1
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Name of related party
FREALTRB

34. RMEALEZS (&)
@@ (&)

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEBRE

Online Global Limited

BEBRARAA

Phoenix Investment Limited

BRREARAT

Regent Mega Limited

HIEBR AR

Six Stars
TN

Smarter Choice Limited
RETBRAT]

Tellet Investment Limited

World Wide Resources Management Limited
RTEREERERAA

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RismEt

Mr. Ng Kam Wing

RipREE

Mr. Lee
THEAE

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee
Wk 22 5 5 50% AR 4 Ko 7 5 A #5 B 50% A 1

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
k22 T B 100% A%

40% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 60% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee
B 22 5 B 409% AR HE K2 7 5 A 15 B 60 % A 1

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
Bk 2L T F5 B 100%A% 1

100% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R fm 55 A 15 B 100% A 1

33% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and 17%
equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RIBEFEE T BN R RIB R IEEFFH17%IRE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
P EZ T F5HE100% A% #

A director and shareholder of the Company

RRAREZEMRRE

Brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman and
shareholder of the Company

RBRAEENREBEENRIERANRRRR

A director and shareholder of the Company

ARBESEMBER
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@ (Continued)

Name of related party

MEALER

34. REALEZS (&)
@ (&)

Relationship with the Group
HAEEEBEE

Mr. Ng Norman
RERELE

Mr. Liu Hongbo
BIDHOR 5 A4

Mr. Ng Hoi Tin

REBRKE

Ms. Mok Sze Wan

sEL T

k=113

&

Ms. Yiu
Hezz £

Ms. Huang Hui

mEXTL

B¢
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A director and shareholder of the Company
RRREZNMER

A director of a subsidiary
MEARESE

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 9.6% equity interest in Able Investment

MRREMEZ RIFERRR A MR E 09.6% K42

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 11.2% equity interest in Able Investment

FREENEZRIFEBRER  FHEMNRKEN11.2%8E

A director and shareholder of the Company
RARESERERR

The spouse of Mr. Ng Kam Wing and the sister in law of Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RBREENRBRRBMRELNDE
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. REALEZS (E)
(o) Save as the balances with related parties disclosed in the b) BREFEEFBKAKRATIFEERBBEALTN
consolidated statement of financial position, the Group EEIN REBRFRNERBGE A LTI
entered into the following transactions with related parties AT S

during the year:

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FAIT FET
Rental expenses, building RIBEATEEA LR
management fee, air- AL mMBLE=
conditioning charges ISR EFERE-
and rates to independent THRBREM:
third parties under license
arrangement with related
parties: (1)
- Goldstar Enterprises Limited —kEMZEBR QA 658 2,780
— Smarter Choice Limited —RETARRQF 2,121 2,754
- Online Global Limited —BBEARAQA 7,890 9,334
- Regent Mega Limited —REBR AR 7,010 7,270
- Modern Education and -~ HR%KERZBRAA
Technology Limited - 2,093
— Modern English Limited —HREEBEBRAF 6,485 6,010
— Phoenix Investment Limited  —&EREBRRQ 7 1,815 3,291
- Head Corporation Limited —BRARRQA] 2,783 13,667
— World Wide Resources —“RFEREEBERAA
Management Limited 9,760 7,693
Rental expenses to: MUATRARSZMNESRR
— Tellet Investment Limited —REREFR AT 1,200 1,200
Commission expenses to: MUTRRSZ AR :
— Six Stars — N - 1,030
Management fee expenses to: M T RARIL N ER B Y
— Six Stars — N - 30
— Mr. Ng Hoi Tin —RBREE 120 -
— Ms. Mok Sze Wan —EEBLt 120 -
Marketing expenses to RIBETEEEA LR
independent third parties AL HE MBI EZR
under license arrangement SRS HEERE
with related parties: (i)
— Online Global Limited —BEBRAFA 286 286
- Regent Mega Limited —RFEBRAR 1 1
Technical consultation, AIA TR aWERE T H B
management and software BRBHFAIRBERA :
licensing services fee income
from:
— Beijing Yasi School — It RERER 1,878 879
Tutor contractor fee to: MU TATSZNERMARE :
— Mr. Ng Norman —REW&E 763 976
— Mr. Lee — = b A 1,206 1,898
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. REALEZSR (&)
(b) (Continueq) () (#&)
Notes: Kiat -

()  These premises were leased initially by the above related
parties from independent third parties. These related parties
then licensed the premises to the Group at the same rates
specified in the respective lease agreements with independent
third parties.

(i)  The advertising space was licensed initially by the above
related parties from independent third parties. These related
parties then licensed the advertising space to the Group at the
same rates specified under respective license agreements.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group also
disposed of property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of HK$301,000 (2010: nil) at a consideration of
HK$2,100,000 (2010: nil) to Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric.

(c) The key management personnel includes solely the
Directors and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in
Note 12.

U

(i)

IR Z
QES

ZEMERVH LRBEBEALTWBET
F=ME -ZEWEALHERIZEE
VE=NAUNZHERAIEENE
RESHFAAREERZEDE-

BEEUEVIA EMEEALABILE
=MEHA - REMEALERZES
A ek 1 E O AR R A & 7 AT AN SR E
ERAEEA-

ZE2011F6A30R LFEE AEE
A {82,100,0007% 7T (20104 : £&)
5 fm ot & H & BR {8 A301,0007%8

7T (2010%F - &) 2 W% - /= Kk -

© TEREEABEBRARRES MHA
R S RO BN & OB FE 129 FE

35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. BT

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011

AN TIH B AT R20114F £2010%F6 A30H

and 2010 are as follows: ZHBWT
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital of the Group Principal activities
BERTR
¥ v
MELERE EMEL Bl BEHE HEfEF FREmERE TERE
2011 2010
Able Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong US$10,000 60% - Investment holding
('BVI")
MER&KE KBRAES 0 10,000 7T 60% - REZRK
((RBRZ#E])
Amber Well Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
BERZERANA B & BT 100% 100% EEER
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. ME2T (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital of the Group Principal activities
BRTR
WERE/
WEARER BRI mitE EEhE HEREF EEEEGRE FERH
2011 2010
Bachelor Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% - Provision of primary homework
tutoring services
BiHE EiE BE 10,000/ 7T 60% - RENEDNRBERG
Business Idol Limited BVI Hong Kong USS$1 100% 100%  Inactive
RERTES BE E 100% 100% HEEG
Beijing Strength Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
RANBRAF EBRAHE Bk 100% T 100% 100% REERK
Express Education BVI Hong Kong US$140 100% 100%  Inactive’
RBRAHE Bk 140% 7T 100% 100% EEEH
Intelligent Education Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of secondary school
education services
BRABGHERRAA 6 BE 100/ 7T 100% 100% REFSHERS
Modern Beiya (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
B (F8)BRAT 6 BE 100/ 7T 100% 100% BWEEKR
Modern Education (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of tuition services
Limited
BREE (BB ERAF 6 BE 10,000 7T 100% 100% fREEHERS
Modern English Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive
BREBHEMRABRAT EE BB 1B 100% - BEXH
Sky Link Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ATERERAA D BE 100/ 7T 100% 100% BWEER
Sino Network' BvI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAES BE 13,983% 7T 100% 100% BWEER
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. HEAR (&)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital of the Group Principal activities
BERTR
BERE
HELRRE BMEE Bt EEHE HEmEF FREEERE FERH
2011 2010
Wise Action Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of printing services
for group entities
BREBRAR B Bk 10,000 7T 100% 100% AEEEEREDR RS
RNERE (bR HE#H#ABR QT PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and
management services
HEl R AR #1,000,0007 100% 100% REAFHAREERE
BMNRNHBEHHAERAR? PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Provision of educational
consultant and
management services
HE e AR #1,000,0007T 100% - RUHBZHREERE

! The company is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly
foreign-owned enterprise.

3 Express Education became inactive during the year ended 30 June
2010 after its operations were all transferred to Modern Education
(Hong Kong) Limited.

EA TR A EEIFE < BB R I E R
AR L FIEE A -

FZELAUSNEBE L FAE AR EERK T -
Express Educationi B 2 7% 2 5542 5% 73 1€

HE (BE)ERLEEEZ2010F6H30H
U FEEEER -
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36. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company as at 30 June 2011 is set

out below:

36. FLFMBEH

RN BIFR20119F6 A308 2 81 % & #h &k 71l an
—|T:

HK$'000
FHETT
Non-current asset EMBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEMBARZE&E 322
Current liability mENE R
Amount due to a subsidiary (Note 1) RN —XWEBARFKIE (HFET1) (10,408)
Net assets FEE (10,086)
Capital and reserve BEAR N
Share capital fi&% 7% 28,400
Other reserve HEbEE (28,078)
Accumulated loss RETEE (10,408)
Total equity 1B (10,086)
Notes: B

1. The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

2. At 30 June 2011, the Company did not have reserves available for
distribution in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman

Islands.

1. ZFAR/EER RERAREBREEE-

2. H2011F6A30H  REMSEHEARE K
UNSINIE AR S = )
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

38.

148 Modern Education Group Limited R 5% BH5IIRL 0

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme were held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme was to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 July 2011, the Company issued 116,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each at the price of HK$1.3 per share by way
of public offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

37.

38.

BFEFE R

AEBRERGIERBESABIGRIAEEM
BREREERIAFEATESE (8
EFE]) - BEEFAENEESE —RBYL
REAZENNESBAKEMEEED RS
Bo-REwESAENRA BEREESR
7 BB AR A RT B AV EL SR A A &I4E ik
AEBEHBRES T BNE T EAREZX
&I 1F PR AR o I 4 B W A SR A] A AR A0
TR 2R A 2 A K

R BEIRENREBAZEFT BRI NE
REBRAKBENFE - ZHEMRE R RAR
BEEAFMOET BN LLAZRKEFE
R REERMNERES -AKEHE
R EIE — R ERRBFTEFL TS

f
R o

NASN

BEMXRESER

R2011F7TH4B  ARFIBERLARBELE
f%1.37%8 7T 2 B 15 3£ 17116,000,0000% & Ik @
BEOIVB T2 TR -RER  AAFZRMD
R AZFTEMR £ e
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